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The Nafana tribe, which people until the 18th century, during the
reign of Asantehene Osei Bonsu became known a2s Banda, is a component part
of Brong~-Ahafo Region. Her people live in the north-west corner of the
Region, just south-west of the Brong-Ahafo/Northern regions boundary.

The ancestors of Banna left their home, Kakala (¥akera) in the
nei.ghbourhood of Jimini near Bontuku in the eastern part of the Ivory
Coast under the leadership of Kralongo. The exact pericd could not be
supplied by the informants, But the story which led to the migration is
told, that at Kakala, the chief was Zie, the uncle of Kralongo, By
custom and usage, Kralongo was the heir-presumptive, When Zie died,
Kralongo was enstooled in succession, As custom had it, he had to choose
one of the dead uncle's wives first, before any member of the royal
family or other clansmen made their choice, This has been an inherent
practice even to this day among the Bannas, Now, before Kralongo could
take the widow of his choice, a relative of Zie already had chosen one
of the widows., In consequence of <this breach of custom, Kralongo refuscd
to perform the funeral rites for his predecessor, He waited for about a
week and the relatives otf' Zie said nothing about the matter, This
conduct revealed to him that even though his relation with the relatives
of Zie was very close, yet they disfavour his chiefship,

v ~ Kralongo with the view to finding out the public opinion, left
Kakala with his kinsmen and supporters in search of a new settlement,
Still, the relatives of Zie did not dissuade the new chief of the
action teken; as such he and his people settled and founded Tampe.
The ancient Tampe township is farther west of the Banda hills ani now
included in the Ivory Coast territory. -~

i~ The people were over~crowded at Tampe., Kralongo therefore
detailed his son-in-law Chagha, who was a skilled hunter to ‘explore
the Banda hills and beyond for a spzcious uninhebited land. He returned
and reported to Kralongo that he had discovered a suitable level site
behind the chain of Banda mountains, Following the statement, the
chief moved with his people and inhabited the spotted land in the
region of Ghana., This settlement was Bakala, south-west of Banda
Ahenkro at the base of the mountains., It is recalled that some subjects
of Kralongo remained ot Tempe under the leadership of Shiemba, a distant
relative of Kralongo, The descendants of these people are dominant at
Tampe to this day and have affinity with the Banda, The other known
group of Nafana is the Sampa half of which live at Werikye in the Ivory
Coast including the Jinini and.the aborigines of Bontuku in Gyaman,
The Sampa led by Sienyono, separated together with the Werikye from
the main Nafana at Tampe when Kralongo resclved to leave the place,
It was the Ashanti and Brong (Bono) who call them as the Pantera,
Fantra or Mfantera, According to Nana Kofi Dwuru, the present Omanhene
of Banda traditional area, the Sampa, and the Werikye people were,




followers of his great grand unele, Kralongo; even to this day, the
relationship between them and the Banda are cordial, The distance from
Banda Ahenkro to Tampe is some 15 miles, approxim&f;ly the same
distance from Banda to Nsawkaw (Nsoko).

There wes no arable land at Bakala owing to the nearness to the
mountains. The people as a result, moved on and built Dadiase which is
now Kebrono, an environs of Banda Ahenkro, The place was unoccupied at
the time.

Sometime later, the Nafassa Banda came across the lic on part of the .
land and killed some while & good number were captured and sold into
slavery. In an expedition, Tokemey, and elder of Kralongo moved across
Bori Kwadwo and his sister Yawa, on the Chonchon hill located in the
neighbourhood. They lived in a hut at the foot of the hill., He
captured the two people and brogght to Kralongo for interrogation.

When Bori Kwedwo was asked from where they had migrated, he mentioned
Kunfia; and had been on the land for only about a week., At the request
of the captives, Kralongo permitted them to return to where they were
captured, and regard themselves as his guest. The legend is that about
a month afterwards, Bori Kwadwo reported to Tokemay that a god "Kwagya"
had descended from the sky into their hamlet, The information was
passed on to Kralongo who decided that Bori Kwadwo should take charge

of the god for him, The hamlet was later named Twintroase,

Mgono Kralongo died very old at Dadiase., (Mgono is Nafana word
for chief), He was succeeded by his nephew Wuru Gyara, who had a
peaceful reign; but died shortly after his enstoolment,

Sielongo was enstooled in succession to Wuru Gyare. Tradition has
it, that he formed friendship with Nkoranzahene Baffo Pim whose father
was the Asantehene, Osei Tutu, They came to know themselves during an
expedition in the neighbourhood, Nana Baffo Pim had at the time succeeded
his uncle Adu Denyina, It is said that his mother wes,taken in captiviiy
in war and given in marriage to Nana Osei Tutu Mpimso,

An account is given that Baffo Pin led on Sielongo to pay courtesy
call to Nana Osei Tutu, Even befare that period, the Nafana, as they
were then known by the nearby neighbours, had not heard of the Ashantis,
Sielongo and his entourage armed themselves with arrows for any eventuality,
as tribal wars were incessant in those days. In fact they had no knowledge
of guns., When the party arrived in Kumasi, the Asantehene asked Baffo Pinm

from where he had brought the people. He replied that they were the Nafana

15 Nickname of Nana Osei Tutu,
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seen at the foot of some mountains, then unknown as Banda mountains, near
Nkoranza, The Asantehene was curious about the bow and arrows possessed
by the Nafana; he therefore wanted to kncw their use, Baffo Pim replied
that they were for the purpose of fighting, The doubting Nana Osei Tutu
atonce cazused a person, probably a slave or a captive, to be tied to a
néarby trec for the arrow to be tried on him, A member of the Nafana
without hesitation shot at the target and the arrow pierced the person
into the tree.

Sielongo and his followers took leave of the Asantehene. While
enroute to Dadiase, message reached Sielonge from Baffo Pim that he hed
been detained by the Ashantis, and had been accused of bringing the Nefana j
whom the Ashanti opined were wicked., Afjonce Sielongo returned to Kumasi
with his people. The Asantehene enquired of his mission, He said that
Baffo Pim brought them to Kumasi and wanted him (Baffo Pim) to guide them
back., Baffo Pim was consequently freed. The Asantehene ascertained
from his son the liking of the Nafana; and was told that they knew
nothing about salt, The Nafana word for salt is "Wonge". On the strength
of that, Sielongo discussed with his elders what gift was appropriate to
be sent to the Asantehene in return., To this and with the advice of Baffo
Pim, they decided on seven sheep, which were later handed to Baffo Pim for
his father, From that period, friendship existed between the Nafana apnd
the Ashanti.

Few years later, Sielongo died at Dadiase, After the performance of

his funeral cersmony, the Nafana copied the Ashanti custom of the blackeni\:

of a stool in his memory. This opened 2 new page in the annals of the
Nafane and has continued up to this day. Thus, the principal stool of
Banda Ahenkro is now known as "Sielongo". According to Nana Kofi Dwuru, .
consecration of a stocl wes vnknown to his forefathers at Kakale,

Sakye succeeded Sielongo his uicle. During his time, the Asantehene &

Nana Osei Xwadwo (1753-1761) requested the Nafana to serve the Golden
Stool., Sakyli refused and told the Ashanti emissaries that if the
Asantehene served gold, he Sakyi had enocugh gold in his room and would not
leave it to render allegiance to him; contending that the Nafana was
independent. King Osei Kwadwo heard this and calculated it to be abusive
and a challenge of power, He despatched an army under the command of the
Dadiesoabanene, Nana Acobrz Kwasi to invade the Nafane at Dadiase, and
obtain the alleged riches. The Nafana who had then allied with Nsawkaw
(Nsoko) sent for their assistance, The Ashanti contingent marched
towards Dadiase and were met by the Nafana and ally on the land on the
southern bank of river Chen, On this land today stand the ruin village
of Bema which was built by Alima Nana Yaya Barema, a moslem, with the
permission of the Nafana lMgono.

B




A fierce and desparate battle w=s Fought. The Nafana and ally chase%
out of the land the Ashanti troops who rested some 50 miles north of |
Kumesi. This unhappy incident wes reported to the Asantehene, who ordercy
reinforcement to be sent to the battlefield under the Kumawuhene, The
Kumawuhene took over the command of the entire Ashanti army when tha battiy
resumed at Sindo, 2 miles south-west of now Bande Ahenkro, It was a s
merciless battle arnd when all hopes of victory on the part of the Nafana
and ally had failed, Sakyl messaged the old men, women and children at
Dadiase to take refuge in the gallery of caves which abound on the
mountains, The caves were two in number - onec near modern Banda Ahenkro
and the other near Gladew village, the Twuli hill.

The Ashanti gained complete victory as Sakyi and his troops retreated to
the nountains and stayed on the crest. The Ashanti in pursuit could not
reach then, The Nafana who were short of arrows resorted to the use of

rocks which they hurled on the enemy., There was no captive from either

side; ©but it said many people died, The Ashanti occupied the deserted

town of Dadiasc.
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It is recalled that there was TCanine in the hide out of the Nafana,
, Consequently, Kosiah Bafo, an Osafohene (lMgono-hlax" in Nafana dialect)
who was the son of Sakyi went down the mountains and interviewed the
Ashanti commander. He suggested that an armistice be arranged. The
Kunawuhene who thought that Osafohene Kosiah Bafo was a neutral person
told him that he wanted the head of the Nafana chiel, Sakyi, for the
Asantehene; unless the Nafana would subkit to serve the Ashanti, the
battle would cocase, The mediator, Kosiah Bafo,carried the news to his
people on the nmountains, The Nafana agreed to descend the mcuntains and§
discuss the terms with the Ashenti., Deputies were appointed who !
acconpanied Kosiah Buf'o for the negotiation, The chiefs of Kumawu and

The Nafana representativaes accepted the terms of subservience to

Ashanti, provided they Woqu 'drink a god' - this in Nafana dialect ‘
_ "me na ngo we sc¢ mgpo' with Kosiah Bafo, that on their descent they WOU!J
! not be killed. Moreover, the blood of a Nafana would not drop on Ashant’
soil and vice versa., Tne scid god wes prepared by the pagan Ligbe,
another scct of the mozlen who had been with the Nafana as refugees afte
the Begho-Nsawkaw civil war, This was cone and the truce ended. Sakyi
and his people came down from the hill, occupied Dadiase and recognised
the Asantchene as their feudal superior, The customary ocath of '
allegiance was sworn by Sakyi to the Ashanti representatives who soon
after that quit the placec. -The Nafana from that time subaitted to the!
yoke of vassalags, under the goverament of Ashanuti, They sont as homagd
. » seven sheep cevery year o the annual festival of the Asantehiene, This

pracvice was stopped during the reign of Mgono Dabla and Asantehene
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Dua I (1838-1867)
Osafchene Kosiah Bafo was elevated to the status of Nifahene in
appreciation of his services in the battle.

Tradition has it thai the moslen group in the midet of the Nafana
once lived under the leadership of Sullemanu at Begho. Their language
was Iigbe which their offsprings today speak. The Ligbe speaking nmoslens
were traders and as such the town of Begho which was situated between
Nsawkaw, Sckwa and Hani becamc an important commercial centre in those
days, It is said that owing to the religious impact, other traders fron
the forest zone were not allowed to enter the town; the trade was carried
on/the bush outside, which was declared to be the markct., There was
the dunb barter at the tine, The main commodity from the forest region
was kola-nuts and gold which were taken froo Begho northwards and
oxchanged with caravans of cattle, beads, slaves, cloth and brassware "
brought southwards, Some yocars later, besides the trade, Kings supplicate . |
the noslens for their prayers, particularly when there was war. A typical
exanple, according to Alhaj Seidu was when Asantehene Nana Kofi Kakar:
invited Kramo Seidu Illimen from Sasi and Kreno Mon to Kumaesi.2 The two
noslens offlercd prayers for the Asantechene and the fAshanti nation during
one of their wars. ‘

The account is given that in the tite of Nana Opoku Ware, the Ashanti
invaded and destroyed the town of Begho, They obtained control of the
trade route to the north. MNaany of the noslens were taken captives and 4
sone sought refuge with Kralongo, the Nafana chief. In the process of
tine, the fugitive nmosleng ailied themselves to the Nafana and established
separate wards within the Nafana settlement., ILater, some of the noslenms
built the towns of Sasi, and Kankan., They however paintained the Ligbe
dialcct., According to eXrl inguist Upanin Kofi Gyato, now 80 years, there
are not & survivor of the descendarts of the true Ligbe speaking moslen
today. Except that of those with slave status who adopted the tradition
and cultrue of their masters, How far this statement may be correct,
Alhaj Seidu who clains to be the progeny of Krome Saidi, recounts tha®
Als anceztors migpgded fron Mande irn Sudan Go %@gho, fullowing a civii
wer, when Iooru reigned.

Pehzoo succeeded Sakyi and had a peaceful reign. He was said Uo
have nmade a surprising change in the systen of chief@nney before his death.
The change to this day has made a group of pcople at Kabrono attained the
right of succession to the principal stool of the Banda. It is said that
traditionally, when the Nafana lived at Kakala, besides the ruling stotk,
.the chiefship was also rested from the naxinal clan of Oyoko, As such.

Cr e e i

2o See Appendix for Genealogy of Inens.




the office circulated alternately between the two segments. But never-
theless; the indeginous Nefana; according to Nana Kofi Dwuru, had no
clan by thenselves, and could not by myth account for what related to the |
practice stated. The system however became inherent to the aborigines
of Banda Ahenkro; but it was this order of guccession that Pehzoo waved.

The story is told that Pshzco who grew very old prior to his death
directed that his personal attendant, Petele; succeed him on his death
Petele neither was of the Oyoko clan or a heir to the stools As an
attendant to Pehzoo, bis sole duty was the preparation of tabacco snuff
the 1liking of the chief., It was therefore inferred by the elders that
the declaration was made in appreciation of his services to the chief
Pehzoo died and notwithstanding his dying declaration, Shieshie, then
leader of the Oyoko clan, whose descendants today live at Gannolo, was
consulted for a candidate for cnstoolment. He intimated that there was
nobody available. and any person could be elected instead and endowed wi
the succession and office., In view of that, Petele who as has been
stased had no right to the stool, on the strength of the declaration by
Pehzoo, was chosen and custoparily enctooled., This was how the members
of the Cyoko clan lost the prerogative right of succession to the
patrilineal descendants of Petele who live to enjoy this day.

The Oyoko clan which is dorinant at Gannolo today has the status of
Oyokohere in the Banda traditional institution; with Nana Kwadwo Zouvya
as the present holder.

Nothing noteworthy happened during the reign of Petele until his death;
and the order »f succession reverted to the Nafana ruling stock of
Krolongo line.

Habaa was the sncecessor, In his time was the Nafana invasicn of
Bole, which people are Gonja or Kesbanya. The first was for supremacy .
and subjugation, The mair weapons of either side were arrows and spears?{
Afier a day long skirmish, tk~ "onja were defeated and many taken {
captives and sold into slavery. i

Tulodwo (Woradwo) succeeded Hataa on his death, He was of the Petel
line., During his reign c¢.1806, isantehene Nana Osei Bonsu Panin (1800--
1824) asked for the assistance of the Nafana in a war waged against the
manti, It is recounted that when the Nafana troops under the ccmmand of
Mgono Wulodwo arrived at Kumasi for the battlefield, they played the
"Sgbit — 'Asafo'! in Twi vernacular, drums and danced throughout the
night without going to bed, The following day, the Adumhene, Kakaba, whc
was the host of +the Nafana enquired for the reason of the continuous play
the previous night when the nation wes preparing for war. He wes repliec
that it was the tradivion and culture of the Nafana to play on the "Sabi'
drun and keep vigil by dancing to the music, until they reached the front
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@wing *to the vigil, the Ashanti from that period referrod to the Nafana
in Askanti-Twi vernacular expression es "won nda" literary "insomnious
people"., It is the exprossion which has been corrupted to Banda.
Otherwise, the psople were knowa and called by their language.

Before the Ashanti and ellies marched %o the fisld, Mgono Wulodwo
swore the oach of fidelity to the Asaniehene, Nana Osei Bonsu Panin, %o
discharge the dutizs, that is, to fight on without retreat, It is
rocalled, however, that at the battlefield, in a forest area the wer
helment of the Bandahene, wulodwo fell. He turned tnr pick it and saw
the Adumhene of' Kumasi beliind him, Both were in +he advance party.
This was one of the most famous of the Ashanti campaigns, The Ashanti
and allies defeated the Fanli who had British ally,

After the war, the Ashanti coxtinzent returned to Kumasi, The
Adumnene, Kakaba, reporied 4o the Asantehene that at the height of the
fignt, the Bandahene Mgono Wulodwo retreated; which action was tantamount |
to the violation of the oath sworn by him, The Bandakenc explai.ned that
the allegation was uafoundeda; that his helmet drepped and thererors
turned to pick it. He expounded further that though many of his troops
perished in the field. yet Le pursued the fight to victory and hed
returned with his comrades. The Asantcehenc accordingly found the
acecusation vo be frivolous. MNgono Wulodwo consequently introduced “he
short drum with the epipram "Kantamanto® :

When Mgono Wuilcvdwe was excnerated from the accusation, he declilared:
to the Asantehene. Nana 7Jsei Bonsu Fanin, that from thenneforth, ha
would not have the Adumnecne cr his svecessor as hostv whnenever at Kumasi
on official or private v.sit., The lsantehene as a resuit directed thath
the Bandahens was tc he the guest ~f the Bantamahenec, This course of
change has been follcwad by sueccessive nccupants of the "Sielongo stool®
even to his generation.

It is said thet before the Banda came in contect with the Ashanti..
the successive chiefs of Banda rode on horse back; palanguin (Gbaa in
Nafane was not known to them. - Tt was the Asanichene. Nana Os:i Bonsu
Panin, who presented t.o Mgono Wulodvo & palanquin for the firsh time, }fl
gratitude of the service of the Banda army during the Fanti operation.
Other articles were six cercmcnial swords and a shorwv drum, With the
exception of the ceremonial swords now in the repository at Kabrono,
the rest are damaged.

Some years later, the Asantehene, Nana Osei Bonsu sent aga’n for the
Banda to assist him wc quell webellion in Gyzman, After the wa~ tha

R

Nafana words for Ceremonial sword = "Poo"; Short drum = "Yebinge"
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Banda were accused of displaying cowardice curing the campaign. The
Ashanti therefore imposed a fine of 1,000 'Predwarn' (£8,000) on the Banda
who refused payment as the context of the penalty was not understood by
them. The Ashanti enfcrced that the amount be paid with the alternative
of either two royals to te sent Lo the court of the Asentehene as hostage.
This however, scared the Banda who were of the opinion that by the demand
of hostages, the Ashanti wanted to enslave them, As a result, they
decamped Dadiase to Bona in the Ivory Ccast —~ though their original plan
was to return to Kakala,

At Bona, war broke between the settlers and the Banda who had seized
supremacy to dominate the latter, It is said that a prince of Banda,
Sie, who was the son of lgono Wulodwo, and 2 prince of Bona, had a bltter
quarrel in the street at Bona, This infurated the adults of either side
that a civil war ensued. The Bona were defeated and fled. As ths Banda
occupied Bona, the la*tter whc had solicited the help of an unknown tribe
naturally resented and sought to regain possession of' their land and
suzerainty over the Banda,

On a Pridey ot dawn, the Bona ard ally besieged the Banda who kad on
the previous day celebrated their annual "Tie" iestival; most of the
peorie got themselves intoxicated. The festival is one of purification
ritea, Uthe aggressors massacred many of the Bandz, prominent among them
being royals and elders. The confusion was terrible that the Banda +ook
to flight. 1In the cowrse of their flee, it is recalled Mgono Wulodwo
wore russet cloth “Kobene” as a sign of mourning. Thus, in memory of the
disaster, he preseried as the great oath "Kobene" to this day. Dbhoreover,
in remembrance of the dead at Bona, even up “to this generation Fridays
are observed as heliday iu the Banda {raditional arca, No manual labour,
especially farming, is permittad on the ammiversary.

While the Banda werc on the =umodus, at Kangele, a town in Gyamarn,
Mgono VWulodwo sighted the Nyuwa po, aow Banda hills. He declined Lo
ascend and return to their former sattiement beyond the hills; therefore
he at last comaitted suicide by drinking a noxious medicine,

Dabla of Kralongn ancestry was enstvoolsd in succession of Wulodwo,
and continued the £iight with his people to Gyaman, The Banda to %ake
vengeance against Bona, sought the help of the Gyaman. The combined
foreces finally conquered Bona and the Bands stayed at Duma, an
uninhabited land in the neighbourhcod of Bona, The land was on tae
confines of the Gyaman.

Sometime afterwards, the Asanteaene, Nana Xwaku Dua I (1838-i867)
heard of the Banda at Duma. He cceut messenger to lgone Dabla and




requested him together with his subjects to return to their oid town.
It is recalled that the Asantehene in the message promised not to maltreat y
nor harass them as his pradecessors acted. ¢ The Band2 accordingly returned 3
and occupied the present market square of Banda Ahenkro, which place was :
called Saminako, The etymology of ths settlement was from the soft grass
"Semireko" in Brong (Beno) diaiect glven by the Nkoranza; in Nafana it

is called "maakpro gbewa'. f
The resettlement in the area to which allusion has the horn intruducted

Ly Dabla with the epigram in Nafana "Tranga ne woi" literary "the land I
is for me", 3

On the death of Mgono Dabla, the next successor was Sahkyame also &
¥nown as Wurosa of Petele line, Early in his reiga there was the dispute [
between the Bedu and Sekwa. Krosuma, the chief of Bedu appealed to ”
Mzono Sahkyame to settle the differences with the chief of Sekwa, Kye
¥Fofi., The latter had also requested the King of Gyeman, Agyeman,

) successor of Darte, for- similar purpose. Captains Dabla Nkroma of Banda
end Dabla Mbere of Gyaman were detailed by their respective governments
for the arbitration, The disputants were met by them at Sekwa where there
matier was to be gone into., In the proccss of the investigation, Captain
' Dabla Mbere who sided the 3ekwa in their action which was the subject
under enquiry, was at unawares murdered by the Banda representative. The
incident perhaps was in resentment of the Gyaman aid to Bana in the f
massacre of the Banda at Bona which was still fresh in the mind of the
actor.

The King of Gyaman, so soon as he heard of this outrage, despatched
an army to attack the Banda., But the Banda being awere of the consequences i
of the Sekwa episode, were in readiness as war was inevitable, The P
Gyaman army were met at the foot of the Gbegbe hill situated at the upper X
stream of river Chen by the Banda troops. A fierce and desparate battle \
was fought which resulted in the #efeat of the Bande and were dispossessed
of their land, Mgono 3ahkyame fled with his people bgyond the Kpaﬁ
river (the Black Volta). They settled at Longoro (1°.34'w; 8°.20'N)
which was and still is Mo tribe dominated and vassals of Nkoranza.

Tradition has it that during the reign of Mgono Sahkyame, the Nifa-
hene of the Banda kingdom, Haeh Kwame lived at Boagase, At the same time,
a section of the Mo were domiciled at Gyama, a tributary of Nkoranza,
and which their chief lagye. It happened that the Ashanti visited Gyama
and made the inhabitants captives. The King of Banda, Sahkyame, and his
coucin Hah Kwame agreed together and paid a medium size brass pan full
of gold dust as ransom in respect of the Gyama Yo the Ashanti. By such
payment and liberation of the people, the land of Gyama was annexed -
the Bands empire.




/ Tia captaeined the Ashanii contingent and knew that the Banda were subjects

A

Sometime after the death of Hah Kwame, his successor Sie Donge went to
stay at Gyama. The people of Gyama who were mindful of ransom paid on
their behalf, no doubt thought Sie Donge would be unmitigated tyrant.
As such, they revolted and left the town without his knowledge.

Following the revolutionary attitude of the people, Sie Donge
detailed two of his elders, Wuru Kwabena and one other, who knew of the
Gyama land to trace the whereabouts of the rebels., The scouts while on
expedition came across the Mo insurgents at Kandige on manoeuvre with
the Salaga, Longoro, Nkoranza, Klo and the Attabubu., The scouts returned
and reported to Sie Donge to be alert as the Mo and allies would é

g

undoubtedly attacked him. This news reached ligono Sahkyame who rallied his
people b Gyama. On a Friday, at dawn, the Mo insurgents and allies
sieged Gyama which had been occupied by the Banda army. A war which was
one of survival of the fittest, ensued; at the height of it, the Banda
troops escaped to Sakpe and remained thewe for some three months,

—
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About this period, thers was an insurrection in Ashanti concerning
the enstoolment of /f.antehene Nana Kofi Kakari on the death of Nana Kwaku
Dua I, The Banda, Daboya, Bole, Salaga and Bona which were province of
Ashanti, formed a military confederation in readiness against any possible
Ashanti invasion of any of them., This came about as they anitcipated the
uprise in Ashanti might lead to civil war; but nothing happened.

After a sojourn at Longoro, the Banda still ruled by Sahkyame moved
to Gulubo, another Mo tribe under the chief of Nkoranza, Nana Yaa
Kranka, was the woman ruler of Nkoranza at the time. No soconer the Banda
established at Gulubo than the Ashenti waged war on Nkoranza, Amankwe

of Ashanti, Therefore, Ashanti supplied the Banda with two kegs of gun
powder to assist in the war against the GREMY, robably by that period,
the Banda had acquainted themselives with the use of guns, owing to their
contact with the Ashanti;

With the Banda beyond the Kpaa river, the tributary towns of Nkroanza
ineluding Nkoranze were hemmed in by the invaders. The Nkoranze
suffered a crushing defeat and fled to Attabubu, wherc Kwebena Asante was
the chief, Nkoranza was totally burant down and their stool amd other
regalia were captured. The Banda remained at Gulubo after the operetion,
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- The Nkoranza while as fugitives at Attabubu Wiase, consulted the
Lente cult at Krachi, Kwasi Gyantradu was then the medium, The omens
were favourable; eand certain miracles performed, About a year after
their defeat, 1893, the Ashanti again. advanced against Nkoranza who had ./
defensive alliance with the jio. There was a pitch~fight at Kunfe (Kumfia)
near Abaase; the Ashanti sustained a heary loss - many killed and




captured, then retired,

The people of Nkoranza re-—occopied their destroyed town. Sometime |
after they had settled, as a measure of vengeance, they made attacked on ‘
the Banda at Gulubo; this was in consequence of the assistance given by }
them to the Ashanti. The Banda wanted the help of the Wenchi; but Kwame ;
Bene, the chief of Wenchi refused following the revelation by the ancestral E
cult, Drobo Kese Ampim. The Bedu under Nana Akrosuma, the Nsoko with Nana 1
I'wame Kru and the Sekwa headed by Nana Bekoi were the allies to the Banda.
The Banda and allies lost the field at Sabre and despairing fled in every
direction. Some of the people with Mgono Sahkyame sought refuge at i
Akomadan, another group went and settled at the southern bank of the rlver,f
'Kpaa which place was later naned Bue.) The Nsoko lived & while at Aboabo

on Wenchi land, It is recalled that the Nkoranza army in pursuit were
confronted by the Wenkyi and with thirty guns drove them back. This aid
by the Wenchi made the same of the surviving Banda and the moslem group
in their company refused to accompany Mgono Sahkyame farther. They were
given land by ths chief of Wenchi for settlement - this is how the Banda
ward came about, = The Wenkyi at the time lived at Ldaagye=—northwest
cuorner of the present towm.

The prominent casualties in the battle were Baduhene Nana Akrosuma, and
his Gyasehene Nana Awua who committed suicide at the front.

Sie Yao also known as Sie Yaw Dwuru, nephew of lMgono Sahkyame became
leader of the people at Bue, The land was at the time uninhabited.
Mgono Sahkyame died while a fugitive at Akomadan, His funeral rites was
observed at Akomadan and attended by the Banda at Bue. According to
ex-linguist Kofi Gyatce, the death of Sahkyame alias Wurosa is miscon-
strued in Ashanti traditional histories that he was a victim in the war,

After the funeral ceremony, there was the exodus moved of the Banda ¢
refugees at Akomadan to Bue, [n the interregnum, Sie Yao who was head of i
the royal family of Kralongo linec became regent of the Banda ¥ingdon, ]
A1l that time the land of their occupation was under the suzerain of
the King of Gyamen by right of conquest - this happened wheun they
defeated Banda in the Sekwa episode which has been stated earlicr,

When the King of Gyaman heard of the re-occupation of the Banda on
the land, the regent Sie Yao went to Bontuku, capital of Gyaman, He
1nterv1ewed Paii, son of the chief of Gyamar Gyaman, Agyemen, for the restoratiorn
of the former Banda land, Papii who probably had succeeded his father,
agreed upon the payment of sixty "predwan" by the Banda; ia addition to

3. Bue is Gblana dialect of the Gyaman, meaning "they shall
return". This was in reference to the Banda resettlezent
on the Jand af'ter a long abhsence - when overthrown by the
Gyaman,



such payment, two royals - male and femalo, were teo bo sent to him as

hostages, The sixty "predwan" when paid was to be the annual salt tribute i
to the King., In fulfilment of the demand, Sie Yao Kuma and Yaa Yale-both :
royals of Banda, were sent personally by Sie Yao to the court of the }

Gyamanhenc at Bontuku; he promiscd payment of the emount later. ;

During the absence of regent Sie Yao to Bontuku, George Eken Ferguson '

an African and the British Representative visited Bue. He concluded 2
treaty of friendship and freedon of trade with the British Government with
the elders of the kingdom.* At the same time, a Union Jack was accepted
by Kwadwo Sito, younger brother of the regent, and hoisted in the Uvown.
Mr. Ferguson after three days stay left for We., Sie Yao returned from é
Bontuku and whole~heartedly accepted the terms of the British friendship ﬂ
end kept open the caravan route to the hinterland.
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The Banda began to bulld villages on the land as they were ove.r'cx'c:‘\w.fde'f
at Bue. Just at that time, some people of Mo tribe led by Sangyo Akate » ﬁ
joined at Bue., They had migrated from Wromalia, perhaps on flight as a | &
result of Samori, a slave raider, and his troops invasion,

1
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After some time, the notable slave raider reached Bue from Bontuku,
He had crossed the Kpaa river at the up stream and invaded Bole. It is
said tha’ Samori befriended Regent Sieyao, and never attacked the Banda
kingdom, Rather, Samori advised Sie Yao to quit his subjects from the
" southern bank of the river, else he lay siege to the place., The people
referred to were the Mos who settled at Bue with the Banda, The
inhabitants accordingly yacated Bue, except the obstinate persons whom
Sapori later mede captives, who were taken to Bole and sold into slavery.
With all the captives, sxcept Akosua Agyei, sister of Wuro Kwabena who
was redeened later at Sisaw near Xinbampo, after payzent of £12 in silver
currency as ransom, Sie was the mother of the present 0dikro of Buea.
Regent Sie Yao died when Samori was at Bue, In view of his presence, the
successor, Yaw Sielongo was though elected but not customarily enstonled
for fear that Samori might seize the opportunity to enslave the Band:,
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While Sanmori and his men manoeuvred at Bue, arrived a Whitema:, with !
‘a contingent of the Gold Coast constabulary., The natives nicknaned the f
Whiteman "Batule" = an Hausa word for Europeans, This was about the time
that Asantehene Kwaku Dua III (Prenpeh) (1888-1396) was captured by the
British, %o sooner Sanori saw the Whiteman and his constabulary than
escaped with his men to the Ivory Coast. The Whiteman with his troops
encaoped at the base of the Gbolc hills, situated northeast c¢i’ the river
Kpaa and Bue, Later, with the assistance of native earriers. they pursued

S

4. DRecords in G.N.A. indicetes the date of the Treaty us
Decemter &, 163k,
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Samori and his band of raiders who were similarly being hunted for by the 2’
French army in the Ivory Coast. It is said that "Batule" and his army ‘
net the French troops on the bank of the Kumbo river, having apprehended }
Sanori, The whitemen however, returned with his troops and the native \9
carriers to Bue together with thirty prisoners who were Samori's scldiers.:
The captives were afterwards handed to Yaw Sielongo who in turn sold them
into slavery.
After three years stay at bBue, "Batule" moved with his troops to Klntaapo.
A few days after the departure of "Batule", Yaw Sielongo, son of Afua
Kondoge, was customarily enstooled as Bandahene. In his time, the 3anda
moved to and built the present township near the ruins of old Saminiko, |
Other people at the sanme time established thenselves at different places f

ol

and such settlements formed the centralised state of Banda, But, the ]g
Mo under Hadwo Kati whose descendants are dominant today remained at #
Bue as subjects of the Bandahene. ﬁ

The Banda assisted as carriers during the installation of telegraph %

poles from Kumasi to Tamale through Wenchi on the Wa route, when Yaw
Sielongo reigned, He died very old - two years after the enstoolment

cf Nana Otunfuo Agyeman Prempeh II. 2Prior to his death, as & result of
peace that reigned in the kingdom, he introduced the horn with the
epigran in Nafana dialect "Nyese na ki kala yi" literary "All days are
not equal®.  The theme was in comparison with the days of incessant wars

Ewasi Sinapion was enstooled in succession to Yaw Sielongo, He was
of Petele line and at the same time a cousin to his predecessor, It is
en inherent practice among the Banda, that the .eldest cousin of a deceas
chief is eligible to pucceession. Notw1thstand1ng the availability of tyi
nephews, In his reign cane up the litigation about the Obuasi-Wewa land
at Bima an area altached to the Banda stool. The claimant was Yaw Mensa !
of Bofie, who according Lo Ebenczer Codjoe, stool clerk on March 13 193@
instituted the action for recovery of possession in the Ashantehe's Nat1”
Court "A"™ at Kumasi, ageinst the Bandahene. i

At the hearing of the suit, Olycame Kofi Gyato, as he then was, by
represented the Bardahene., Either parties recounted their respective
traditional history as to the ownership of the land in dispute. Upon
the facts the court on Lpril 4, 1936, gave the following short judgroent:

b

) "This 1s an action in which the Plainti’” seeks to recover
possession of plece or parcel of land known as Obussi-Wewa
and lying and being at Bimeh in the Banda Bistrict. The
hearing of the case has lasted for sometime. The Court
having heard all the evidence adduced by both sides and
also having considered the cortified true copy of Judge-
nent delivered by Comnissioner Poole on February 25, 1922




and confirmed by the Chief Commissioner John Maxwell

Esq. on February 8, 1230 in respect of this very

land is of the opinion that the Plaintiff is not the

owner of the land for which he has sued the Defendant,

The evidence of his own witness who is the 0dikro of

the place ir very danaging to hin,

The Defendant nust therefore have Judgmenu with costs
~ to be taxed".,1

The case was first before the Otumfuo Osei Agyeman Prempeh IT as Pres:.den't‘1
the other panel were the Agonahene, Oyokohere, Akwamuhene and Head ﬁ
Linguist., The hearing was adjourned several times, and finally the B
court constituted by Nananocm Kofi Adu-Kokofuhene as Ag. President, J
Ovokohene Kofi Agyckun, Amakomhene Kwaku Attah representing Adontenhene,
Toasehene Kofi Owusu representing Krontihene and threc ex—officio members
~ Okyeame Kwane Anoateng, Ckyeane Kwane Buaben and Okyeame Kofi Atim,
decided the issue as stated above, The Plaintiff Yew Mensa appealed
against the judgment to the Court of the Chief Commissioner of Ashanti;
but the decision of the court below was upheld. Once nore, the Plaintiff
appealed to the High Court at Accra. While the case was pending at the
Appellase court, Mgono Kwasi Sinapin died,

During the interin, the Krontihen~ Nana Kwaku Ble was regent.
Kwadwo Sito, Nifahene of Banda, was by custoz to ascend to the stool;
but he rencunced the clain to his nephew Kofi Dwuru, on the grounds. of
old age. Twenty-six years ago that Nana Kofi Dwuru, the present chiof
was enstooled, His mother was Afva Gyirdege., He took the customary
oath of allegiance before the fsantehene, when the Zrong-iAhafo Region
was integral part of Ashanti,

In view of the land case hefors the Appellate Court, Nana Kofi Dwuru
later applied and waes substituted for Nana Kwasi Sinapim then deceased,
as Defendant Respondent, Finally, the Appellate court confirmed the
Jjudgenents of the court at first instarce.

1. 4shené Court Record Book No.1 Folio 130 of March 13, 1936,
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TRADITION OB BUE,

On the north-west corner of Banda-Ahenkro, (Banda Samanku).a;a the
Brong Ahafo Region, is the village of Bue, This settlement is 400 yards
to the southern bank of the River Kpaa (Black Volta). The meaning of the
nane of the village, as related to the Banda history is the Gyaman dialect,
peaning, "they shall return", The word "Bue" wes used as a disparaging
nicknane by the Gyamans, The origin of the statement came about, when
Gyanan had the land by conquest from the people of Banda who later
survived their defeat and re-occupied the land.

Bue is now a Mo tribe dominated, but on the Banda stool land, as
soquence of events will indicate. According to the tradition, the pcople
of Mo arrived at Bue as a band of refugecs under a leader, Jbroke, coming
fron Wromalia. They had evacuated their home following the raid of
Samori., Some accounts say that a section of the Mo people migrated fronm
the north as a result of a dispute about the ownership of a dog's head
custonarily, which caused their strife., The imigrants pleaded with
Mgono Sielongo, the Bandahene, as they decided to stay on. Ther inhabited
the land lying irmediately south of river Kpaa (Black Volta) and old Bue,
which land was naped by Hausa traders as "Lua" -~ Hausa word meaning,
water., The place was on the main caravan route to the north, and served
a halt for the traders to and from the north across the river,
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Jbroke and his people were made responsible for ferrying wayfarers
across the river XKpaa., Tolls collected were sent to the Bandahene who
held sway in the arca., A reasonable share of such proceeds was given to
the head. of the Mos at Bue, Besides, these inhebitants were hunters;
they hunted on the land and paid rights o the Bandahene,

On the death of Jbroke at an old age, there was no male heir and the
head of the family, Wuro Kwabena succeeded him, At that time, Sie Daglo,
younger brother of Vuro Kwabena, moved from the northern bank of the river, §
where he lived and joined his kinsmen. During the time of Wuro Kwabena, b3
Sanori and his band of slave-raiders reached Bue. They had marched hither
and thither in the neighbouring interior towns capturing slaves., The
Banda tredition asserts that Samori never raided the original settlers,
the Nafana speaking people, Sie Yaw Dwuru was the Regent of the Banda
kingdon, ©Samori having befriended 3ie Yaw advised him to vacate his ’
subjects from the bank of the river Kpaa. Most of the ripartians deserted
the area; except few obstinate ones who were later taken by Sanmori, the i
slave-raiding adventurer of Mande, to Bole and sold into slavery to dealers
No sooner had Samori operated in the area, than his son Issa who remained 1
at Bue, with a group of his father's armies, heard of the arrival of a ‘
Furopean with an army, A4s he did not want to embroil himself with the
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White man, he abandoned the place, This incident may, be calculated to
have been between 1896 and 1898.

The story is told thet sometime later, Wuro Kwabena heard of his
sister, Lkosua Agyei, at Sisaw near Kintampo, She had been sold in
slavery — a vietim during Samori campaign at Bue., With the Assistance
of the Regant, Sie Yaw Dwuru, aAkosua Agyeli was redeemed after the payment
of silver=-curt to the velue of £12 as ranson, According to Opanin Kofi
Gyato, this was evidenced bty him.

Peacz and tranquility prevailed in this north sector of Ashanti tributary,
when G.E, Ferguson explored and negotiated treaty of protection with the
Bandahene - Regent Sie Yaw and his sub-chief's.

Wuro Kwabena was succeeded by Sie Yaw, son of Akosua Hanyapo,
Nothing of interest happened in his time, The next ruler was Gandaw Kofi,
on the death of Sie Yaw, His mother was fbema Kuma, A4Acccrding tic
tradition, his was a peaceful reign. Dabla Kojowo son of Akua Bi succe~
eded his uncle and reigned for many years. When he died, Sie Dable
succeeded him., His nother was Adwoa Dabane.

During the rule of Sie Dabla, that Yaw Sielongo, the Bandahene
appointzd Shadwo Akate his slave to take cver the ferry duties. Neverthe=
less, the Mo chiefdom remained even up to today. The ferryman rendered
account %o his master, through the Odikro of Bue. After sometime, the
ferryman, Shadwo Akate rmisappropriated mongy accrued from the work. On
the strength of a report by Odikro Sie Dabla, to the Bandahene Kwadwo ~ 7
Wuo who also had slave status relieved Shadwo Akate of his duty. After
the death of Kwadwo Wuo, other successive ferrymen were Gbelenmie, Kwadwo
Kingufu, Kwame Kanagaw, Yaw Tinkalo who died in 1938. Kwame Numua, son
of the present Bandahene, Nana Kofi Dwuru, becane the last ferryman
until 1961, wien the ferrying process ceased to operate, Canoe was the
only means for the c¢rossing of wayiarers. The nain wayfarers were
Moshie people and the approxinate nonthly toll collected was £G10. The
toll per head varied with the tide -— 1/~ and 6d for hlgh and low
tides respectively.,

The character and habits of the Mo were enriched by their absorption
of that of the Banda people in the course of their long close settlenent.
But to this day the former maintain the Mo dialect, though thegr do
understand and the Nafana language which is casually spoken,

On the death of Sie Daglo, his nephew Kwadwo Gyan alias Fori, son
of fma Kuma, in 1921 succeeded him, In his time, the Bandahene Yaw
Sielongo, conferred the status of Odikro on the ruler of Bue - a title
held by his successor today. :
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In 1946, 0dikro Kwadwo Fori died and his nephew Kwadwo Donkor
succceded hin., His nmother was Akosua Agyei. According to Kwadwo Donkor .
the people of Bue have no oath of their own, other than that of the
Bandahene which is used.

Chieftainship has been, throughout, inherited by Jbroke famil:--
through the matrilineal line, According to their own tradition, the
people of Mo do not depose chiefs nor arec chiefs allowed to abdicate,
The notion being that the office is family hereditary. In view of that,
there is one consecrated stool which represents 2ll deceased chiefs with |
the Mo expression "Lala Kala" neaning "Spirit stool", 3

DYNASTY of CHIEFS

1% Jabroke

2% Wuro Kwabena

3 Sie Yaw

e Gandaw Kofi

5 Dabla Ko jowo

6. Sic Dabla (Deglo)

1o Kwadwo Gyam alias Fori

8. Kwedwo Donkor Present 0dikro.

LIST of TMMAM AT SASI

P Yahaya Barima

24 Sahedu (Seidu) Banda,
B Sahedu Banda '
wlg Bayana Banda

9. Allasani Banda

6, Maharmudu Banda

e, Anadu Baada

8. Mahama Banda

9. Anadu Bgnda
10, Leho Sina (4ssa)

(B b Barima Banda Fresent Ioman.
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HANT AND NSAWKAW TRADITION

The people of Hani are said to have come out of the ground from a
hole located on an extensive open plain, destitute of trees and covered
with grass. This locality, three miles north-west of Hani, is known as
Nsesrekeseso. The dignitories who came out with the people were the
. Krontihene Kuru Twebea, Queen-Mother Bene, Twafohene Desa, and their

leader Kutu, brother of the Queen-mother, Kutu assumed the office of
a chief over the people,

Another account is that the chief did not accompany his people,
For, he'was about to appear from the hole, when there was 2 yell and
remark about his big head; he therefore withdrew and remeined in the
hole to this day.? The fact still remains according to their tradition
that the ancestors slited up from the ground which is now a sacred site
for the people of Hani and Nsawkaw. Successive chiefs of the two towns
immediately after enstoolment have to visit the site and perform certain
‘rituals,

The people were of thrée sects from the ground namely, the Brongs,
the Ndweras (Moslems) who lived southward of the hole, and the Mpantras
who later made their home in the neighbourhood of Nasana, It is the
descendants of the Mpantra people now dominant at Debibi, The groups
were known by their language which their respective descendants speak
today, Notwithstending the varied dialects, each sect could understand
one another, Tradition has it, thet the Brong people had in their posses—
sion stone axes, hammers (Sae" in Twi), and swords which indicated that
they were warrors. According to the Omanhene of Nsawkaw, it is in
memory of the swords that the short-drum of Nsawkaw has the epigram
"Meso akofena" literally "I em holding & war sword", The Hanihene
claims thet with two special hemmers (specimen, Cat: I 65,19) thathis
- forefathers used to slit up the ground. The two hammers are today in
the repository of the Krontihene of Hani, whose descendants were thé
chief's blacksmiths, At the annual Yam festival, the Krontihene pours
libation to the dead on the hammers in a special blacksmith's shed
erected for the purpose,

The occasion for the rituals, according to the present Krontihene

- of Hani coincides with the Moslem fasting periocd; and it is observed
similarly by him end every occupant of the Akwamu stool till the new
‘moon is seen, By the observance of the Rahmadan festival, it may be
deduced that thé Krontihene and the ikwamuhene descended from the pagan-
moslem groups  Such inference is further strengthened by the use of
Ndwera dialect V(Ligbe) in reciting certain invocations at the time,
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is kept there until a successor elected and enstooled, Agein, the
" funeral announcement to the Krontihene has the allusion in Twi dialect

 ™the chicken you gave me, has been caught by a hawk", Besides the

The Brong community, having come out of the hole, lived some 200
yards westward off the hole, They were farmers, hunters, and few
craftsmen — blacksmiths and goldsmiths,” Here, it is asserted by the
Krontihene of Nsawkaw, that when they had settled the people chose
Krontihene Kuru Twebea to rule them, He decllned the offer and told
them to exercise-patience until the Queen-mother Nana Bene bore a son,
who by custom and usage, would be the chief, In view of the 51tuat10n,
Kutunebene was elected chief; the Krontihene Kutu Twebea gave the chief |
a stool as & symbol of authority and the recognised leader over his
people, In remembrance of the presentation of the stool by the Krontihene
it'has been the tradition that:on the death of every Nsawkawhene, the
consecrated stool is taken immediately to the Krontihene's house. It

H

"Akoko ba a wode maa me no, Lkorome afa no"; that is literally meaning
2

funeral etiquette, the rullng Nsawkawhene does not shake hands with the
Krontihene; neither the Krontihene nor the chief should see each other
at meals, asleep or taking a bath; lastly, it is a taboo for either of
them to ride on one vehicle; not to drink from the same calabash and

forbidden to touch one another‘s chair or stool -

Desplte the dlfference in the tradltlonal account “aile the samé- the
aboriginal leader was Kutu with his sister Bene as’ Queen-mother- -but the
Nsawkaw informants give the name of the ohief as "Khtunebene" 11terary
Kutu and Bene, ‘ . '

The staple fbod of the indigenous people was gu1nea corn ("Ayuo
in Twi), After a sojourn at Nsgsrekeseso, owing to drought, Nana Kutu
moved with his people . eastward and found Bew, . The Chief was independent
of the people and owed allegiance to no other chief, The moslem group
lived west of Bew; they mostly prayed and wrote in Arabic. ‘Some of
them were farmers and ,dyers., 'Woven cloths were dyed 1nto indigo in
dye-hallows,?

The story is told, that Nana Kutu requested his successor to be
the son of Nana Bene, who would be his nephew, But whenever she gave
birth, the fectus was a golden figure, They continued for seven times;
thus these characters were known as "Abusode" or "Asade Nson", They are
today in the repository of the Krontihene's Queen mother at Nsawkaw —

"Fie Kgsem", The other neme of the golden figures is Bosomhene

However Nana Bene 1ater brought forth a son, Ati Bentla.

Nana Kutu 1ntroduced the horn Wlth the epigram “Tw1edlampon ef
mani da wo anim, Kwae gketebo didi dabere nasom adwo no" literary,
"Almighty ! I lbok to you, every animal eats where there is peace",



© This according to the present Hanihene, is in memory of the aborigines
having comé from the ground ~ they knew no other nation except the sky
which they perceived, fgain, he was the originator of the short drum
with the saying "Firi tete TFiri tete Odomankoma" literally meaning
his sovereignty wes from time immemorial and the Almighty, - These
‘misical - 1nsﬁruments and their respective epigrams are still used by
Fthe Hanlﬁene. ‘

Atl Bentia succeeded his uncle Kutu. Tradition has it that Nana
Atl Bentla ‘had a skilled hunter, Gyane Pantene. This hunter one . day
‘on expedition of the adjoining lands of Bew, met another hunter, neme
not remembered, by the river Werewere, The strange hunter halled
from Koti;. half a mile from Sampa.‘ The river which was the meetlng
point of the two' hinters became the west natural boundany of-thegr s
respective chiefs. Koti is situated on-thé Sume Stool Land., At
another time, Gysne Pantene explored south-west of Bew; he came ‘across
Dompe Bofﬂor .who was a hunter from Nsuatre, on the bank of river Tain
on the upper, stream, Thus the river Tain subsequently became the
boundary between Bew and Nsuatre., Following another survey dowm
stream of the Tain, Gyane Pantene met Kyei, a hunter of the Wenchihene,
and the, river made the:eastern border of their chiefs,  The Wenchi
people at the time were at Ahwene, © Furthermore, Gyane Pantene and Yaw
Boanya of Banda.met on the bank of the river Chen (Kyin), which became
“the northern boundary with Banda., The riyers Chen and Werewere are’
tributaries of the Tain, The former has its source from the east of
the Keserapre hill and the latter from-the west of the same h111 The
h111 is situated between Duallaso and Sampa. ;

S blE market was organlsed by Nana Ati- Bentla at a site known as
Gyetundi. It was situated between the townships of the Brong and the
Moslems, . There was brisk trade contact with tribes far and near, -
“The main commodities on the market were gold, yams, ground=-nuts, kola
nuts and ginger - the kola nuts were brought from the southern forest
zone, and gold was obtained from the auriferous regions around Bew.
Caravans came. from the Ivory Coast with cattle to exchange goods; but
the main currency was cowries. The town of Bew .in the early days
was not less than a commercial centre,  fccording .to informents at
Hani, until recently cowries were often dug at certain parts of the

: rulns of Bew during oultlvatlon. S ;

" On the death of Ati Bentia, his jounger brother Gyabaa Konto was
enstooled in succession, In° hls time, Gyeane Pantene came across the
Miina people who were domiciled at the southward neighbourhood of modern

‘Nsawkaw, Their chief was Nkandeku, = The hunter reported his discovery
to Nana Gyabae Konto who invited Nkandeku end his elders to Bew, The
people of Miina have the myth like the Bews: that they also came out from



the ground, near Kokoro Amoa village. The meeting of the two chiefs
was cordial and as a result became acquaintance, Later, there was’
intermarriage and fllrtlng between the sexes of either towns which made
them one., .

Accordlng to one account, durlng the tlme of Gyabaa Konto, one day
his son whose name is not remembered went to the market at Gyetundi and
bought salt. On his return home, the son of the Imam of Moslem gquarters
rode a horse against the Prince of Bew and -his purchase fell from him,
This caused such ill-feeling between the people of Brong and Moslem
quarters that a 01v11 fight soon set in, and held out till seven days.

But- another account says the wife of the Bewhene and that of the
Imem met at the market, They quarreled over "Efers" (Pumpkin), This
turned to a civil fight between the Bews and the iloslems, Large
numbers of despalrlng people from either groups took to flight, With
the moslem refugees some settled at Bontuku in the Ivory Coast and
found Donso quarters; others too went to Kong and Bobodwereso near
Kankan in the Ivory Coast, The civil fight is referred to by the .-
natives as "Nnommata" or Abonten-tuo"., The Brong refugees fled to -
different directions and places, 4 section of them under Ampofo Kuma
went to Asiri, 6 miles from Goka (20 32'W; 7° 39'N); another group

joined the people of Goka while some of them settled at Abamufua un&er
the’ 1eader5h1p of Nana Fadee. S

- At Abamufua was the ancestral deity, "ankoko“ of the Brong people
of Bew, This earth god had mensturation as & primary taboo and would
not permit people to live near the shrine, Nana Fadee therefore moved
on farther with his people in search of a suitable land, While looking
out for the new settlement, Nana Fadee died, and was succeeded by
Asunkunu Bore I, son of Boatemea. Nana Asunkunu Bore I and his people
at last settled and found Nsawkaw. The etymologies of Nsawkaw are
given in two different accounts, Information from the present
Nsawkawhene being that when Nana Asunkunu Bore I arrived on the ,
land, all his retinue had died to which he expressed in Brong dialect
"Nsumkwa—fo nyinea ko".- It was the utterance that has since been
corrupted to Nsawkaw, The other account given by the Krontihene,
Anthony Twomasi is that Originally, the whole area was known as Bew,

A circumstance, however, occurred as Aso, the mother of Domenkoma expired.
When Domankoma who was absent from the town was informed of the death,

the messengers made the statement as "Aso ko" literally meaning ZLsg has
gone — an expression synonym to "was dead", =~ By that the place was -
referred to by callers as ‘Asoko, which was corrupted to. Nsoko or Nsewkaw,
The gold belongings of the deceased Were left with Nkuruwaase.

Some time after Nana: Asunknnu Bore- I had settled a sectlon of the"
Miina people led by Anon Kwaku joined at Nsawkaw, There had been
commotion at Miina which resulted exodus evacuation, as some of them




-

HAN! - NSAWKAW (BRONG AHAFO) STOOL . LAND

'

7

45

i3 i "‘

P i, O )
- .
Lam AN . - .‘Erawhcm
= : T °& SIRIBO
C - - BO \
“"‘\ o 2. s
2

ADINGERA
" - & AR

* Numasa

[ =

L 3

3 : ., KWAMITINTIN

¢, Mayara - BONG s

’ 4 Hani S
R ‘KASA w o\ :
RING ‘f \\ Nsuhunu/gM
Bl e \ A
i T \ ‘JIJIH!LMA s 3 -
$.Buni ALASL N vmeni %
% T Nasafia ‘g Degedege : \
” it \‘. ‘A 9% ;&
Goka 'ﬂBcpoase b ":4%. 3
_ ‘ummnmm 3 e : LAl B p
¢ 4 AAxvATA \\‘, i A

f \ nuupumn Al

* X \\‘ .;

v ' Stkwa's 1

\ : : ‘ \ Badu® j ’ﬁ"
wim f\ﬂ
X

==|==. Roads
-——= Motorabie Tracks
e~ Rivers

a Mountains~

@ Towns

esow & mdua

*~./Tainano
l{-z—q_," )
FE Ty

SCALE /250000




went to Longolo and Abaeso respectively. Anon Kwaku and his party had
with them the Nntuayam cult, In order to maintaéin their friendship and
alliance, Nana Asunkunu Bore I asked for the cult, In reciprocate,
- #non: Kwaku was given a royel of the Gueen mother Dakurom line to work

- withe~ Nana Asunkunu Bore I bestowed the status of Akwamuhene on Anon
Kwaku; Nifshene to the Krontihene of Miina; and the Miine Gyasehene
was appolnted the medium of the -deity Tuamoafle. The descendants of the
aforementioned stool-occupants to this day enjoy the office,
Afterwards some of the Miina royals married Nkonakwagye people, Their
offsprings occupy the Kwabi quarters at Nkonakwagya and with the status
of Krontihene,

As a result of the eivil fight, Bew which is said to have been very
large town with 177 quarters was devastated and denudéd, After many of
the Brongs had gone and settled in their respective localities as stated,
the remnants under the leadership of Kwaku Ampofo founded a new °
settlement fartherst west of the ruins of Bew, This place was Asonomenam,
..a name derived from the abundancé of & elephant tails presented to Nana
Kwaku Ampofo by hunters as tributes. According to the present Hanihene,
in view of such presentation, his predecessors were flanked by retinue >
with the tails in splendour which bespoke the dignity of his offlce
when in state, With the foundation of Asonomenam and Nsawkaw, & new
era came forth into Bew history, of the separation of a people bf one
descent, Nevertheless, traditional links continued to be maintained in
terms of united bond, even to this day., This is evidenced by thelr
.¢ommon royal cemetery located on the land at the confluence of Adunkunu

“(Dungeru) and’ Nyempene (Nimpeni). - Both Hani and Nsawkaw stools are \
titled "Asaree Nson Abrade" though commonly lkmowm as ”Kutu-ne—Bene" i€,
"Kutu and Bene", - They share the same boundaries with adjacent trlbes or

towns, and use one and the same oath as will be seen later.

There was the invasion of" Techlman-Mansu by the Ashanti people
during the reign of Nana Opoku.Vare. Following a request by the
Techimanhene Nana Ameyaw Krumpew, Nananom Kwaku Ampofo and Asunkumu
Bore I detailed a contingent under Kwasi Sekrosa to assist Techimen,

The descendants of Kwasi Sekrosa today are the occupants of the Twafo

- stool of Nsawkaw. The Ashanti army were hard pressed in the battlefield,
© Asuhiae Tae Kofi the war god of the Adumhene was consulted, It forcasted
to King Opoku Ware that unless the Nsawkaw troops were withdrawn,
otherwise Ashanti would lost the field. In consequence of that Nana
Opoku Ware despatched Adumhene Ado Kesse to Nsawkaw, He was to negotiate
with the Nsawkawhene Asunkunu Bore I to recall his troops. The Ashanti
emissary through trickery by presenting gifts of clothes, drinks and

salt to the Nsawkawhene was the succession of his mission, as he drank
_to the god to merk the symbolical expression of their friendship.

Before the Adumhene visited Nsawkaw, the Ashantis were unknown to
that part of the country, The Nsawkawhene and his relative the
Asonomenamhene for fear of possible invasion by the Ashantis, hence



accépted the proposel, In order to fulfil the wishes of the Asantehene,
the Nsawkawhene sent & message to the Techimanhene under the pretext
that'his town had been attacked, He therefore asked for the release of
the Nsawkaw army forthwith, By that method, the Nsawkawhene cunningly
withdrew his assistance and troops' from the front. At last, the
Ashantis merdiiéssly overrdn Techimen-Mansu,

Agter this war, Asonomenam and Nsawkaw became allies of the Ashanti
‘kingdom, The present Nsawkawhene intimated, that it was through the
assistance of the Ashantis in the operation; +that Nana Asunkunu Bore I
was regarded as Obrempong (a title equivalent to Paramount chief) in
the Opoku Ware regime,

Nana Asunkunu Bore I kept Nsawkaw and Asonomenum together as one
tribe, and Nsewkaw as a military state, From the series of wars that
Nsawkaw was invited to participate, Asunkunu Bore I introduced the horn
with the words "Kwame—e ! Brakatu ! Onipa Boa berekwa" literary what ever
you do, you shall die, ;

1#3" During this reign, the people of Sekwa migrated from Bona in the
Ivory Coast., They had escaped from the raid of Samori the slave
dealer,. The brief account of these migrants is that originally during
their migration, they lived at Sampa; and later at Odumasi near

“‘Sunyani, After a sojourn ‘they moved to Ampabame, a suburb of Kumasi.
Their leader (mame fbrgotten) appealed to the Asantehene for grass-~land
to settle on and feed their horses., They were made to live at Nkwankwa
in Offinso Traditional area, Some time afterwards, their leader again

- informed the Asantehene that- the horses had no sufficient grass;
consequently, they were conducted to Nkonsia near Wenchi, Owing to
misunderstanding between the squatters and the people of Nkonsia concern-—
ing certain infringements of the taboo of the deity of the former, the
matter was reported to Nana Mensa Bonsu, Asantehene, Following that,
the Asantehene made the Sekwas to live at Donnyaa, on the Hani - Nsawkaw
land, upon the express grant of the Hani and Nsawkaw chiefs,

After mny years stay at Donnyaa, a hunter on expedition discovered
a brook in the environs. The hunter was optimistic that the brook would
‘not dry up, and therefore reported the find to the chief, A section of
the people accompanied the hunter to negotiate with the Nsawkawhene
Asunkunu Bore I, the possibility of their staying by the stream, The
Nsawkawhene as custodlan of his ancestral land w1111ngly granted the
“people usufructuary rights of the land; but on condition that both
Baduhene and Sekwahene made to him every year 40 yams and 4O hen as
tribute, The Nsawkawhene named the stream "Sei Kwa" literally meaning
"a waste" —— and from which the settlement derived her name, This was
the outcome of the separation of Badu and Sekﬁa.\i,




Tradition has it that Nana Osei Bonsu enroute for the Gyaman =
campaign encamped about 2 mile to Nsawkaw, He was entertained by.his
retinue with Adawea play, The spot todey is'lmown as "Adawea-amenamu",
About the same time, the tutelar god of Nsawkaw Tuamoa, Through its
medium requested the Asantehene to walk bare feet through the town.

This order was refised by the Asantehene and instead, followed a bush ..
track to Nkonakwagya where he remeined for some. :4Q days, Nana Osei Bonsu
during the brief stay, flirted With Akua Kwanaa, a member of the Ascna
clan and a royal of Nsawkaw and daughter of Slmpe. When Akua Kwanaa became
pregnant, the elders of Nsawkaw took council over the matter. There was
unanlmlty that they could not live with the. exprected child .of the
Asantehene, Following the d801810n, the men.at Miina. (Menaso) quarters
murdered Slmpe and her pregnént daughter in cold blood at -Motia,

Another, account is that Slmpe ‘before. her unfortunate death cursed the
menfolk of Nsawkaw vith want. .Nana Osei Bonsu heard of the heinous act.
He atonce ordered a smell force of armed men fo proceed to Nsawkaw to
punlsh the people. Adumhene Kakaba commanded the army, which dealt

with only the people of Miina who were responsible for and again maae
early report of the incident to the Asantehene, :

Abataa was the chief of Nkonakwagya, It is said that the Asantehene
enquired to’ know from Abataa the route to Gyaman, - In a reviling speech,
Abataa retorted "Ekwan foro dua?" (does road climb a tree?). Consequently,
Nana Osel Bonsu on his return from the operatlon had Nana Abataa taken .
to Kuma51 and executed., . :

Some years later, Nsawkav and Asonomenum were called upon by the
Ashantis ‘to assist in ‘the invasion of Fanti land, Kwaku Ampofo and
Duodu were Asonomenumhene and Nsawkawhene respeotlvely. The latter had
succeeded Asunkunu Bore I, The Asonomenumhene deputed his younger
“brother, the Nsawkawhene to join the Ashentis with an army for the operation.
On a Monday, Nana Duodu died &t ‘the front. The remains were brought to
Kumasi and 1nterred at Kwawoma, 2 village on the former Kumesi - Bekwai
moto road. This village is under the jurisdiction of the. Adumhene.

The burial was effect at the place since Hini and Nsawkaw chiefs are the
guest’ ‘of the Adumhene whenever they visited Kumesi., This practice was
initiated from the moment of their alliance with the Ashantis in the

time of Opoku Ware as stated elsewhere in this monograph?

Ever since, '"Dwoda" (Monday) has been consecrated and institutéd the

oath of Nsawkaw and Hanl. Many of the Nsawkaw troops, mostly the Debibis
died,: S e : al

_ Yaw &borad was enstooled in succession to Duodu. - Hls mother wae
Dakrom, He had the stool name Ohene Yaw, After the Fantl'war, Nana .
Osei Bonsu, Asantehene, rewerded Nsawkaw with a. ceremonial swords
furthermore, . su036351ve chiefs of Nsawkaw by Ashanti constltutlon were.
authorised to swear allegiance to the. occupant, of, the Golden Stool of
Ashanti, with the Mpomponsuo sword. This constitutional right tontinued



until the Bréng Sﬁate of which Nsawkaw is included, seceded from the
Lshenti Confederacy :Ln 1951, « "Nsawkaw and Ha.n:. later joined the Brong .
Kyempem Federatlon as 7111 be seen,

Nana Ohene Yaw dled shortly after LO days' reign. Gyan Panin
‘ succeeded Ohene Yaw "but died shortly after his enstoolment from
small pox. Kwasi Nkatia succeeded him, All that time Kwaku Ampofo
was st111 the chief of Lsénomenum,

In the time of Kwasi Nkatia and Kwaku Ampofo, Asantehene Nana
Kwaku Dua I prepared war against Wassaw, The Nsawkawhene was invited,
but refused to participate in the operation., When the Ashantis
returned from the war, they marched on Nsawkaw and .isonomenum to hold
them in check as rebels., . The insurgents suffered heavy losses that
their tomms were destroyed., /fifter the fight the whereabouts of Nana
Kwaku Ampofo was unknown, However, the two towms Nsawkaw and Asono=-
menum were rebuilt, Owing to the pressure brought to bear on the
subjects of Nana Kwaku Ampofo by the Ashantis, the new town was
called Hani,

Aecording to the present Hanihene, as has been stated earlzer,_
every occupant of the "Kut ne Bene" stool of Hani in lineage is
elder to Nsawkawhene, But traﬁltlon oclaims that some time during
the reign of Nana Ampofo I, he informed the fisantehene Opoku Ware,
to pass every information to him Hanihene, then resident at Asono—
menum, through the Nsawkawhene., . The statement was made when the
two tovms sought Ashanti protection and friendship, It was for such
reason that Nsawkawhene was detailed to captein contingents from
their side when as allies in fshanti wars. dccording to custom, in
respect of preparation for war, the commander of every army had to
swear oath of fidelity to the fisantehene, It was in view of the
continuous. swearing by the Nsawkawhene that successive lsantehene .
regarded him as a warrior than the Hanihene, The version of the
present Nsawkawhene on the question of seniority is that the people
of Hani were the ancestors of Nsawkaw and chosen to keep the sacred
hole or ground now known as Bonso, at the time of Nsawkaw flee after
the Bew civil fight,

. #fter the Ashanti punitive invasion of Lsonomenum, and the
‘whereabouts of Nana Kwaku fmpofo I was unsettled, the stool became
vacant for meny years, It was anticipated that Nana Ampofo I would -
return from wherever he had gone., During the interregmum, Kwame .
Adiyia of the royal lineage was appointed Regent, He held the office
for many years until he became blind and renounced the regency. St111
the possible heir being minor, Kuru Fata Seakume assumed the regency.
After his death, and all hopes of tracing Nana Ampofo T hed been
frultless, Karo wes enstooled, His mother was Anlma lkua, .




'k“ Durlng this reign, a feud arose between Badu and Sekwa which-
culminated in a war, The Baduhene was Lkrosuma-and the Sekwahene
was Kye Kofi, Nsawkaw at the time was ruled by Lmeyaw Kwame, ‘Hani
was an-ally to- Sekwa ‘while Nsawkaw went to the aid of Badu, The '
Hani contingent was 00mnanded by Krontihene Gyanso Yaw. The Hani= '
hene Ameyaw Kwame and the aged.did not go to the war, 'The first phase
of this war 'resulted in the killing of the Sekwahene between Namasa
and Hani by the Nsawkawhene, Thereafter, confusion was immense,
Resistance to the front was slacken, Scraﬁbllng blindly some of the
Hani army in hot haste in famous flight went to Brodi and Mayra; but
the Krontihene-and a few others returned to Hani, This war caused
depopulatlon of Heni and the survivors were mostly old persons, In
view of the 51tuat10n and for their safety, Nana Karo moved the
*people westward, - They lived at a plage which was nemed Nkokoram,
The notion was to remain, there and await the return of their ynung
men who formed the contlngent and had taken refuge elsewhere. :The.
ruins of Nkokoram 15 half a mlle from Hanl. ErEEak

&
The Sekwa people escaped to Gyaman in the Ivory Coast and 35

solieited the help of Gyamanhene Agyeman, ~ Moved with 1ndlgnatlon
the Gyamen army set out for & punitive expedition against Badu and
her allies, Badu and Nsawkaw heard of the advance of the Gyamans
and Sekwa troops; and they deserted their towns and took refuge at
Banda, The Bandahene was Sahkyame, The second phase of the operation
was the attack on Badu' and lNsewkaw in which Banda joined the fugitives
‘against Sekwa and Gyamen, In a dey's fight, Badu, Nsawkew and Banda
were defeated and driven beyond the river Adre (Black Volta), The .
people of Badu consequently settled at Whrompo, four miles north of-
Wenchi; Nsawkaw people lived at Aboabo near Nwase; and the Banda
people-remained at. Longoro, : i o

The cause of the war was that the soh of Baduhene seduced the
wife of a royal: of Sekwa, The Baduhene apologised to the Sekwahene
- through the Nsawkawhene who. detailed his son Kuru Kwame to settle the
_matter at Sekwa, During the arbitration, a guarrel ensued between
Sekwa an% the Badu: rePresentatlves. Thls subsequently developed into

a fight :f«

When the people of Nsawkaw were &t uboabo, two royals namely
Adoa and Goroade revolted ageinst the Nsawkaw stool., They managed to
lay hands on the consecrated stool and had it burnt. On the commend
- of Nana Ameyaw Kwame, the two royals were executed for the descration,
For the reconsecration of & new stool in replacement, three ycung
persons were sacrificed and slaln. Their blood was besmeared on the
new stool, Following that any mele royel born as the third child of
his mother (Mensah in Twl expresslon) is forbidden to ascend the stool.

-



- former town,

S

The father of Nana Agyeman KW&Sl ‘hailed from Gyaman in the
Ivory Coast; and had his son named af'ter Nana Kwame fAgyeman, Gyaman-
hene, Nana Agyeman KW&Sl was declared a witch and responsible for
..the death of his linguist whose name is observed in haze and myth,

He subjected to poison ordeal with "Domi" ‘or "@dom"12 to indicate

his innocence, fn author of his own misfortune, notwithstanding =
several protests he drank the poison at Nsrokwse, outskirt of |
Nsawkaw, .The concept was thet if he vomited the noxious stuff, ‘then
the accusation was untrue, But Nana Agyemen did not spew; conse-
quently he suffered from swollen :stomach (obstruoticn of the intes-.
tines) and died, He was burled in the bush neer river Borggo in the
Nsrokwae forest,

Nena Ameyaw Kwame, of whom detall account had been given earller
was enstooled in succession, after the death of hgyeman Kwasi, He
died and Kuru Kwame, son of Akosua Nyaw and Dagyamo, succeeded him,
Nana Kuru Kwame was ‘2 most successful chief, the last to reign at
Aboabo, and remarkable for e 1ong relgn.

vL\The most memorable event of Nana Kuru Kwame s time was the +shanti-
Nkoransa war, Nana Kwaku Dua IIT alias Prémpeh I was the Lshantihene,
Nena Akua Dapaa who was the Queen-mother of Nkoransa at the same time.
ruled the people, In the war, the' Nsawkaw people who were still fugi-
tives at Aboabo, supplied men to assist Ashanti, The people of Nkoransa
were defeated and sought refuge at Wiase near Attabubu, Afterwards
Nkoransa in revenge attacked Nsawkew, Badu and Banda people who had.
‘been allied ageinst them, = In this war, Baduhene-Akrosuma was killed,
The people o‘/Nknransa won the field end returned to rebuild their
, Nana Kuru Kwame and his subjects on flee went to Akomadan,
Later he managed through a Mohammedan whom he consulted, and got the
Ashanti army commissioned by the Asantehene Prempeh I under Amankwa
Tia. They agein advanced against Nkoransa who were defeated; and
Nsawlkiw together with Badu returned to their respective abode in the
neighbourhood of Nwase, It was after the British annexation of the
Ashanti kingdom as their possession, that Nana Kuru Kwame returned
to Nsawkaw with his people, He did not join his subaects in the town;
but stayed at Moramrano., According to Adwoa Asuama, mother of the
present Hanihene, the Nsawkaw people returned through the instigation
of a Mr, Fair, a District Bommissioner then resident at Sunyani and
had administrative Jurisdiction over the area,

Tradition says thet in the reign of Nana Kuru, the Krontihene
of Nsawkaw, Gyan Kwame, had a wealthy woman Ama Gyegyekora-basahyia.
She always wished to accompany the Krontihene to meetlngs at the
Ahenfie; but as a woman she had no right or privilege, | The woman 5
having reallsed that made her son 4ddo Koko, to represent her interest
at future meetings and arbitrations, Within that period, Ama Gyegye-
kora-basahyia had a female slave, Taanaa Lintiebe, This slave was

e e—
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~respectful behaviour of the Sekwahene as wilfully disobeying the great

betrothed to Addo Koko who was & retinue to Asantehene at Kumasi, It is
said that one day'when Addo Koko was on errand to Kumesi, a man from the
Tuamoa cult household carnally knew Tasnaa Antiebe, She became pregnant
and delivered & son who was named by the adulterer as Amoa Kwame, = Addo
Koko on his return from Kumasi was informed; at once he changed the name
of the child to Nyamoa ~ meaning "I did not promise you." When Nyamoa
attained the age of manhood, Nana Kuru Kwame bestowed the status of
Adontenhene on him, His descendants enjoy this rank to this day, with
Kwabena Dagyamo as the present occupant of the Adonten stool,

The story is told: that Kwame Kosa, a natlve of Sekwa but &omlclled
at Degedege went to the viecinity of the Hani and Nsawkaw royal cemetery
to mine gold. ,The matter was reported to Nana Kuru Kwame by the Hani-
hene Kofi Apaw, the 1%th on the dynasty., The two chiefs were thrown
into anger and dismay by the news., All hopes of a pacific settlement
were given up and the Ashanti great oath was sworn on the trespasser
to leave the sacred spot, . Sekwahene Kwasi Bekoi heard of the incident
and sided with the conduct of his subjeect in defiance of the oath and
disputed the right of the claim, Nana Kwasi Bekoi swore similar oath
to make good his claim of the land., The aggressors reported the dis-— :

oath lawfully sworn.on his :subject. The matter was taken before the
Drobechene Kwame Donkor who adjudicated and found Hani and Nsawkaw
guilty., . Such a turn of affairs was least expected from the tribunal,

The chiefs of Hani'and Nsawkaw appealed against the deeision to
the Asantehene's Court, Nana Sir .Otumfuo Osei Agyemen Prempeh II was
President of the court, The appellants related that Sekwa was squatters
on the land and given usufruoctuary right, ¥ The chief of Badu was summoned

. to testify on the claim at: the instance of the Appellants.VATo their utter

dismay, the Baduhene who lived with his people at YWurompo became a third
claimant in the suit. An agreement was reached by the Court that one
square mile of the sacred grove which constitutes the mausoleum was.
declared a prohibited area for the Sekwa and Badu people, Furthermore,
all proceeds in the land or aceruing from the land occupied by the
sojourners were to be apportioned into two =~ ope half for the Nsawkaw
and Hani stools;  the otlier half for Sekwa and Badu, After this case,
the Badu people evacuated Wurompo and occupied their present habltatlon
on. the HanluNsawkaw stool land.,

Nana Kuru Kwame dled,very 0ld and Kwabena Abebrese, son of Yaa Badu
was succeeded on the stool, He had the stool name Asunkunu Bore II,
Having relgned for six years, he was destooled for mal-admlnlstratlon.

Kwame Boama succeeded to the stool with the neme Kwame Lgyeman,
n. maffered from.leprosy, one of the importent gqualities connected with
chiefshlp, and abdlcated after three years an the stool
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. Kofi Fofie was enstooled as Gyan Panin II, His mother was Abena
Kunney, When the Brong States, former vassals of Ashanti and members
of the Ashanti Confederacy, formed the Brong-Kyempem Federation, Nana
Gyan II styled himself as Mponuashene (commander of the outpost of the
Brong State): “For his political affiliation with the defunct National
Liberation Movement, @nd misappropriation of stool revenue in the
region of £1,100, pressure was put on him by his people and deposed
eight years ago.. The amount of money was fbr the construction of a _
palace. 2 ' ' =

; No “sooner after the deposition of Gyan IT then Kofi Antwi, son of .

Akosua ,Kobi was enstooled, His stool name-is Asunkunu Bore II. Prior.

to the enstoolment of Nana Asunkinu Bore IT, there was stool debt of“
£1,;400, . The relatives of the chief-elect were requested to pay the -
outstandlng debt before the enstoolment effected., But the Nifahene,
Kwasi Bediako, remonstrated against the demand., Consequently, thé
tomsfolk promised to levy £2 per male and £1 per female to make it up.

. Two years after the enstoolment of Nana Asunkunu Bore II, the
people of Nsawkaw resolved to depose him, He was accused of not
performing the final funeral obsequies of the late Nana Kuru Kwame,
of undying memory in the town and famous with long 'and prosperous
reign. As family antagonism of compatriots served to inflame and
excite the belligerents, so unanimity amongst them served to. soothe
their feelings and disposed them to yield, Nonetheless, this brought
a debt of about £2,750 on the chief, In order to settle the debt,
seven farmers' of the chief's relations pledged tnelr cocoa farms to
Obosomfo Kwaku Firl for & loan,

Back to the Hani tradition, Kwaku Adiko, son of Akua Tamia, X
succeeded Karo on his death, There was land litigation in his time
between Hani and Namasa, The former claimed absolute ownership and
Jurisdiction over the land known as Namasa stool land, The suit was
contested before Mr, Fair, District Commissioner at Sunyani and

judgment entered for Heni, Namasa was represented by Sadia, Namasa-
hene, : ; :

. After the death of Adiko, the stool became vacant and Kofi Fori,
a member of the royal family was appointed Regent, His mother was:
Afua Twewaa,  Most of the people who had been fugitives elsewhere as
stated earlier during the Sekwa Badu fight returned., There was the
exodus move by Nena Fori and his subjects to their original abode,

Heni, DNana Fori held the regancy for more than ten years and abdicated,

Another member of theé blood. royal Kwadwo Mensah, son of Ama Hra,

acted as Regent.during that 1nterregnum. Three years later, he beoame

ill and consulted an oracle which disclosed that he would dle if the
regency was continued; consequently, Nana Kwadwo Mensah abdicated.
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Kwabena Adamu, whose mother was Ama Twewaa, ascended the stool,
During this reign, some royals of the Kronti stool of Haeni were traced
to Jinijini and Nsapo in-the Brekum Traditional Area, Tradition claims
that during the Bew civil war, a member of the Kronti lineage, Ayaa
Nkuruma, escaped to Pepease in Berekum, Nana Amankwe Diawuo, the
Berekumhene, decided to marry Ayaa Nkuruma. The story continued that
Ayaa Nkurume one day went with other women to Jinijini to buy Korobona
(species of beans). The Jinijinihene, Nana Kofi Panin,. saw Ayas
Nkuruma and did not allow her return to Pepease, In the course of her
stey, she flirted with Bene Kofi, younger brother of Nana Kofi Panin,
and became pregnant, The Brekumhene heard of the condition of Ayaa
Nkuruma and was enraged; .for, he had been deprived of his fiance,
Consequently, the Jinijinihene and his brother apologised through the
Dompete Odikro to the Berekumhene with "predwan" (an amount equivelent
to £68)., The Brekumhene accepted the apology. The child born by
Ayaa Nkurume was Yaw Bediako. i :

As stated above, when the progeny of Ayaa Nkuruma were found,
Nana Kwabena Adamu apprized the Berekumhene Nana Kwabena Owusu that the
people headed by Kwadwo Nketia were his subjects, He emphasised
that the people had been there through marriage being offsprixgs of
Sekyiwa Akosua, daughter of Ayaa Nkuruma. Nana Adamu therefore
requested the Berekumhene to give them fair treatment at all times.
Similar appeal was made to the Jinijinihene., Kwadwo Kra was the
occupant of*the Kronti stool in Nana Adamu's regime,

When Nana Adamu died, his nephew Kofi Apau succeeded on the stool,
His mother was Abena Kwaa, He reported the trespass of Sekwa people
who had no interest on the joint ancestral land of Hani and Nsawkaw;
despite their occupation on portion of it,.

Kwaku Fokuo the son of Adwoa Nima Kumaa, was appointed regent on
the death of Nana Apau., He acted in that capacity for some few years,
before Kofi Adu son of Abena Gyama, was elected and enstooled. Nana
Kofi Adu is said to have had a charm enshrined in a tomtom, When ever
this tomtom was beaten, the youngmen of the towm became involved in a
trouble, Such culprists were brought before him and heavily fined,
The frequent imposition of fines scared many young folks from the towm,
Later, the secret of the tomtom was detected, Again, there was a
great domestic trouble, Nana Adu was discovered having illiet
intercourse with "daughters of the stool" who were widows, The two
incidents annoyed the elders beyond words and Nana Adu was deposed.,

Kwadwo Donkbr, son of Abena Kwaa, was enstooled with the name
Tufuor, His was a peaceful reign and tranquility prevailed in the
town, But 10 years later, Nana Tufuor was accused of mal-administration




and abdicated, 4According to other accounts, he did not abdicate of
his own free will, but was asked to do so by a strong party in the town,
Both accounts may be true, singe the cause of action was based on one
and the same charge,

Kofi Poku was elected and enstooled in.pimce of Nana Tufuor,
He had the stool name Ampofo II. His parents are Adwoa Asuama and
Yaw Hemen of Atibie in Kwahu Traditional Area, In the words of Nane -
Ampofo 15 B from the very onset of his enstoolment, his cardinal obaectlve
was the promotlon of the welfare of the people, With such policy,
the people saw the dawn of & new era at Hani; a 5 mile feeder road :
was constructed through communal labour, This road links the Nsawkaw
-Berekum motor road, ,Besides, the Methodist Mission established a
Primary School through the 1nf1uence of Nana Ampofo II,

About ten years ago, there was a dispute between Nana Ampofo II
and Nsawkawhene Kwame Agyeman II. The latter attempted to usurp the
right of the former by seniority in status. He customarily claimed
two twin girls born at Hani as his stool wives, This happened when
‘Nana Agyeman visited Hani, Nena Ampofo II alive to Akan customs and
tradition objected to the claim so made, and swore the oath of Ashenti
to that effect. The Nsawkawhene responded to the oath to affirm his
claim, This matter was heard before the Asantehene Nana Sir Otumfo
Osei Agyeman Prempeh IT and judgment given in favour of the Hanihene.

The dominant olan of Hani and Nsawkaw is the Asona,




- 16_ -

DYNASTY of CHIEFS of HANI

,1.q2Kutﬁ ‘ ‘i' Died Queen-mother Nana Bene
2, Ati Bentia ‘ i 1 " Adwo Kuma
3. Gyabea Konto (Kuntu) " " * " Simpe duo Anima
L, Fadee ' e .j?}' : A . " Akya Kunwa
5. Knaku Ampofo R " Akoma, Akosus Tenae
o ‘ [ and Twewaa,
6. Ywame Adiyia (Regent)"gbaicated,; " " Adwo Kuma and Amisaa
7. Kuru Fate Seakume (Regent) Died i " Abena Kuruwa
8. Karo Died . Mgt *  Alua Tamea
9, Kwaku Adiko a ¥ 2 " Akua Tamea
10, Kofi Fori (Regenf) Abdicated " © " Anima Kuma
11. Xwedwo Mensah (Regent) iAbdicated = " ~ " Abena Gyama .
12, Kwabena Adam . Died - ; " - " Kurudwo; 4Ama Kra and
: .~ AKUA GYABUMU
13. Kofi Apau 40 i "  Akosua Tamea,
14 Kwaku Fokuo (Regent) Abdicated ) . " Akosua Tamea.‘
15 VKDfl Adu Destooled : , . " Akosua Tamea, .
16, Kwadwo Donkor alias Tufuor abdicated "  Akosua Tamea,
17. Xofi Poku alias Ampofo II enstooled
16 /6/ 1y g " Akua Takyiwa; Abosua

Tamea III and Abena

Kuma alias Tamea IV,

There are three royal houses =~ Anima family the present head being
Kwabena Tano

Twewa family the present head being
Kwaku Pong

Tamea family the present head being
Abena Kumae,
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.. DYNASTY of NSAWKAW. - ...7o-

5Ameyaw KWame of

‘Kuru Kwame

Kutunelerie ' Died
Ati Bentia M

. Gyabaa Konto "

7 “Fadee B
Asunkunu Boré I o0
Duodu n
Yaw Aboraa allas Ohene Yaw o
Gyan Panin B
Kwasi Nkatia' "

.[Kwadwo Kramomo M
Swato szt
“Kofi Ampofo L

“genkoto Asamoa i
_Kofi Korkor alias Dagyamo . )
(Agyeman Kr.ras:l_ I "‘ 2 Not

B

it

Kwabena Abebrese allas ékunsunu Bore IL

Kwame Boama

Kofi Fofie

n

1

L

Agyeman IT
Gyan Panin II
Akunsunu Bore II

buried @t mqusqleum.

.Destooled

enstooled 28/1/1958,
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Kuru Twebea
Bea Twebia
Awento
Adinkra

Ldoo Kwame

Kwasi Dwaraa (Regent)

Gyane Kwame
Kwadwo Nyamo
Atta Kwame
Kwabena Owusu
Yaw Tanno
Kofi Kéﬁsei

Kwaku Adokwabo

Anthony Kofi Twomasi

DYNASTY of KRONTT _STOOL, NSAWKAW

- Died Queen-mother Nana Tetentgo

abdicated

_enst. 2/3/1955
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Ayaa Nkunwaa -
Ayaa Boorofere
Buaboo

Komme

Gyaa'ﬁkyé

- Adaam _

Akosua Antwiwa

Adwoo Sara

Afua Baabesa

- Akua Benee

Akua Benee

Akua 36nég

~Akua Beneg



- 19 -

PART TIT.

* 'EXPEDITION TO BONSO (THE SACRED HOLE)

At 800 hours on February 8, 1965, accompanied by Okyeame Yaw Asare,
Peter Takyl - my host, Kwasi lesa. and Isaac Fokuo left Hani for the
Bonso., The guides were all members of the royal family, - Nana Kofi
Ampofo IT Hanihene, and his elders had the previous day (Sun'day) given
his favour of my ben.ng taken to the. sacred spot from which the ancestors
of Hani and Nsawkaw slited from the ground

We 'walked in a singl—e file ia_.leng a foot path to westward of Hani,
Peter Takyi with cultlass, preceded the entire party, slashed through the
high elephant grass and made a passage when it was necessary, At
certain places, the grasg had been burnt, To a distance of some one
mile off Hani, there weré yam plantat:.ons here and there,

. At 0900 hours, we arrived on a plaln land with short The land
was mostly ‘covered with ore, Approxlmately in the middle of the field,
a level ground and clear of grass, was a pit with dark mouth, similar
to enimal burrows., There were many ore, of course large ones around
the entrance of the hole Okyeame Asare explained that the hole was the
dwelllnguplaoe of their forefathers,

.A fow_l We had ‘taken along was sacrificed for the splrlts of. the
ancestors W:L'th the following invocation: o

“Nananom nsamanfo monsore ntie asem nea mereka y::. :
Nea tete mpanimfo woyoo no, na yen mmofra yi nso yereyo
Na mo na moyee agyapadee no de gyaee
Na tene nneema no nyinaa ne ti ne wo Bonkesee yi
. . Na Nana Hanihene ne re mpanimfo, yato akokg de ame me se
i e -memfa.memmere Wo.
20 Na ne nsam akoko no n:. na woabegye adi
. Na -watwe. omen nkwa ne .akwanhosan :
- Nana Hanihene nkwa so; ne mpanimfo nkwa so, ne mma
nyinaa nkwa so. |
.oieye ade biara a, momma enye yie..
Owure a obage. nso.nkwa so.. Ade a grebehwe
. no.nso, morma onkodu - f:.e dwoodwoo.
. Momma bone blara rnto no kwan mu, ~ Momma n'adesua
e .nkoso mma yen nyinaa
. Momme yennye asomdwe ntena Omen yi mu .
Osuo ‘muna babiara -a, momma on‘bo mma afumdee nye yle
Mmaa awofo nso nwo mma, ‘bebree’ na yemfa nkyelqyere Oma-n no,
' . Okyeame .ne ne mmofra ghaeg nkwa so - :
¥ Be,gye w'akoko .di meaado“



e

(Ye spirits of Grandsires, arise and listen to what I say:
What the ancients did, is what we children are doing.
You did the heirlooms and left them;
And all the &ntiquities had as thelr head this sacred hole,
Chief of Hani and his elders have given me a fowl to be
given to you,
Here is the fowl; come forth to receive it and eat!
Life and health for the people!
To the health of the chief; and the elders' health,and”
that of the populace. ;
Whatever we do, let it be good.
il.so to the health.of the august visitor, what he has
come to witness, let him reach home safely;
Let no ill befall him; let him progress in his studies
) for the benefit of us all,
Give us peace to live in this State;
When the clouds are dark anywhere, let it rain so that
. our crops may be good,
Let productive women also bring forth plentifully, so that
. with them we may build this state.
To the 1life and health of the Spokesman and the attendants
who have come,
Come and receive your: fowl and eat with civility).

The sacrificed fown was t rown to the ground. It struggled a while
and laid on its back -~ an indication of victory and that the ancestors
favoured the visit, Few drops of blood were allowed to spill at the
entrance of the hole, Its legs, Heart, intestines, head and wings
were removed and placed on the pool of blood at the entrance - these
were parts of the fowl for the spirits of the dead; the rest was
roasted and consumed at the spot by the guides,

The sacred hole had a rough rigid entrance of a round shape;
its diameter measured 415 inches, and the depth at the time of visit
was 23 inches. fccording to Okyeame Asare, the hole was formerly very
deep and tunnel-like; but had been filléd following erosion after
rainfall, : : ' :

; About 220 yards north-west of the hole, at the edge of the

[ grassland, was seen flat, wide, rough rocks covering a large area,

On the rocks, were numerous grinding holes. It was alleged by the
Okyeame that the aborigines ground their stable food, guinea corn,

on the rocks., Careful survey of the spot. revealed no remains of huts

nor midden, To a question, the Okyeame said, that the aborigines did

not live in huts for about forty days, while scouts explored a suitable
site for settlement, As has been stated in the preseding part, it wes
from the wilderness that the ancestors of Hani and Nsawkaw moved end

1% founded Bew, which place is known to the present generation as Amanfokese,

-
] Q. kA




Tredition hes 16, that the carly settlers at the “fB'o_n.sb'_" used the
Kyelm:m stream. It ﬂows southward of the. sacred hole. i

The trada.in.onal ‘account qf the sacrad hole ,is, 'no doubt, ‘one of
a myth.:-The. abomgmes probably migrated from the North in the Ivory
Coast, and domiciled on '&he savanna, j e .
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SONG OF THE MINSTRELS FOR HANTHENE

Nene Yenkyimadu Kwao, tekyema yanfoo 3 Agya Seniamoa ne kokro
" aniwa’ ne wura na, | ' s
Maba wo pono akyi ne hini me,
Ka Brempon nne, kankankyi anikyie beku me; Kuntu Boafo me f‘:.r:L fie ho
Merema wo aduro, nso mere sen, Nwunu adwo nyansaa mu

- Yema wo Ate Bentia, Brayie, mede mehrere gkog; Mampong—Hemaa

mede mafere wo;
Okutu ne Bernne se anna; Gyantmbn. Kwasi Akoako, mesre wo ene ayan
twne,
Mfom koo asuo, fa nkaye bre me; Yenkyimadu a, mede mafre wo
Kasa kronte tomua yekyiri nyima du.
Yema okyem tete a, meda bre mo; Abremo nso tete a meda okyem
Okyem ne Adowe ba; kye mere mo seniansa; Akyem wa ba Seniansa
Ono afirifiriwa, ne ho apg duasa a mede afre no.

Yekuruku ade, ye krakra ade, ye ko man ben?

Ye ko Nsawkaw krokro tabia koko; a mede mafre no,

Tumina kese dee ewo ahwene ani

Nsawkaw be Hene resen, Yenkyimadu a, mede mafre no

fmponkro sum sire ni; Jfmponkro beko baabi a, mae ade nkye;
na esum ne nwawa nam

Sum de abode ba; safra Kompi aboa nini

Nkyinkea no kwan a nofi kwan wo no

Ratakyi Boafo a, edom suro no ni

Yekuruku ade, ye krakra ade, ye ko man ben?

Yeko Wenchi atete krona

Daa | mere Pintinpi ne Pantampa abo bon ma Pra-anyini anya babi ada

Nenanom Wenchi ye pe du, yen pe nkor_c_n_n- na nkoron ne nkoron nua ese
din; yense ko merane

Nkoron nua Abregyima ne Lhene goro

Se nkroma ko nsuo na wamma a, bisa /moako ba banyin

Wenchi bosom, bosom Bonsu; Abrefa Brong kani a, mede mafre no

Yekuruku ade, ye krakra ade, Ye ko man ben?
Takyiman ye Hene /meyaw Krompew ho.

Katakyi boafo me de mafere no

lisuo Tano krampre, mede mafere no,

Yekuruku ade, yo krakra de, Ye ko men ben?

Nana Wiafe fLkentan mede mafere no

Kotoko Hene Panin wafa LAsamoa diko, ama Asamoa ayera
Brofo Asamoa Addo Kese, Nsawkaw ni

Ampoma fi Kumasi

Yeko Adenkyem mena so

Etwie a, ne kon wWoso

Etwie ba adamfo' “damfo dada no.




NSAWKAW

Neaikaw Kuru Tabia’ koko . Ankoma a, gko hye.akuro;, -
- Pna obo tikwa di ananadee :
Oban1 twereboo &, ose nakofra

Zvron Kyempem Duoduakwa Hene a, ofori tete. Odomankoma boo’"

adee &, obi nim nahyease,
Duodu nana a.teka asere
Ati Bentia nana a, ode brahia kum kog .::
Obani twerebog e, oban1 sUlo no - L . o £ 5t
Osenseiaso Kwaagyebiri anomaa Werequg a, ote ne- nsenoa
Asunkinu Bore maakye aku; maakye ‘Abrawo,
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NOTES _AND REFERENCES

Information given by the Omenhene of Nsawkaw, Nana &Lsunkunu
Bore ITI, and his elders,

A survey at the ruins of the moslem (Kramo) ouar+ers on 7:2:65,
revealed a dye-~hollow of 25—" circumference, The spot was
overgrown with tall grass and located south-westward of Hani,
Other articles found in the area were, fragments of potteries
with grove designs.

Information from the Krontihene of Nsawkew is that the seven
golden characters are attended by a specially selected woman
of chastity. She is even forbidden to speak with men,

While at Hani, T was taken by Peter Tekyi to see where the
market stood-Part of the area is-now overgrown with grass and
part cultivated for yams.

Information given by the Hanihene and his elders,

Information given by the Nsawkawhene and his elders,

Ibid page 7+

See Banda Tradition~--LiS accs no. BA/1.

According to information from Mr, Dente C./.. he was the father
of General Adu Bofuor connected with the ishanti - Krepi war
of 1869~72, His nickname was Opoku Duesia for he had sixty
children, Today his descendants are at Wawase, Atimatim and

Sokoban,

This war is more generally referred to as the Battle of
Dodowa or fAkantamensu,

From my observation the menfolk are idlers than the opposite
sex who are industrious and rich; perhaps due to the
effectiveness of the curse,

A kind of tree, the bark of which is used for the ordeal,




Classification: IAS acc. no, BA/3,

Informants: Nana EKwasi Bediako IV, Branamhene, age 7L yrs,

Gvasehene Asamoa Yaw
Opanin Kwadwo Nsiah
Okyeame Kwabena Fori
Kyidomhene Kwabena Kra
Nifahene Kwasi Nsiah
Adontenhene Atta Kofi
Gyasewahene Kwasi Amoa

Recorded by: Kwabena Ameyaw,
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The tradition of Nwase cannot be dealt with without first
mentioning that of Branam (2°.03'W; 7°.59'N). According to the
myth, the ancestors of Branam slited up. The leader was Kwame Badwi
who, with his people, lived around the spot, which had the name
Mansra. He had with him Akua Nsoaa, his sister. The people were so
numerous that ten settiements were built in different sites in the
neighbourhood - namely, Kwala, Brebo, Nkwanta, Kwawale now Mantukwa,
Domtaw, Wahabu. Nwananwana, Twiasua, and Brumu, According to Nana
Kwasi Bediako IV, aged about 74 years, the etymology of Mansra was
derived from the eleven towns found by the people; +that is, their
principal leader Nana Kwame Badwi who was chief lived on the slit to
watch his domain - in Twi expression "QObe sraa ne man", Akua Nsoaa
was the Queen-mother,

Tradition has it, that the ancestral leader came out from a hole
with a stool, a ceremonial sword and an arrow, These articles are
today heirlooms and kept in the repository at Nwase, The lingua
franca was Mo, the language of the Mo people who migrated from
Grunshie and live around the Black Volta, To this day, the descendants
of the aborigines speak the dialect; except the Nwase people as will
be seen later., The land of Mansra at the time was uninhabited and
j abound in game, The source of their water supply was from the river

Brabo,

Sometime afterwards, Kwame Goa, a renowned hunter of the Mansra-
hene on expedition came across a fellow hunter Kwabena Kra on the !
downstream bank of river Subin, He was the subject of the Wankyihene
who at the time lived at Ahwene, The river Subin as such formed the
natural west border between Mansra and Wankyi, At another time,
hunter Kwame Goa met Baffo, a hunter of the Nkoransahene on the bank
of river Dadaw, this later became the eastern boundary of the two
tribes, In like manner the river Adre (Black Volta) formed the northern
border with the Yebu (Kagbanya) people. Suffice it say according to
Nana Kwasi Bediako IV, the Mo tribe sometime during the reign of Nana
Yaw Bediako II, were allcwed by the Europeans (British Government) to
settle on part of the Mansra land and founded Mantukwa village (New
Longoro). The parcel of land were the ruins of Kwawale, Another
natural boundary southward was river Tain, on which bank hunter Yaw
Gyane of Mansra met Papro, a hunter of the Nsawkawhene Nana Asunkunu

: Bore I.

~ The aborigines of Mansra were mostly hunters and gold diggers.
Their prosperity depended mostly on the latter, They were able to
secure gold from the Domtaw land situated on the bank of the gold-
bearing river Tein, The main mining tool was iron (adre), The iron
ore was extracted by the people from "Boo pim" (a kind of stone)
through severe heat of fire, and later treated by local blacksmiths
into a pick, The people lived on herbs and the game hunted.

|
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~ Nana Kwane Badwi introduced the horn with the epigra= "Onipa
pé ko a, ko ne no nko", This was in consonance for being @ warrior,
Acoordlng to the present chief, the blowing or scunding ¢f the horn
is always prefixed with the name of the reigni ra chiefs — thus
"Bediako Brempon, onipez pg ko a, ko pe nc nko." =io the exalted,

any person who wishes a flght 11ght ‘him), Furthersors, he had the
drum which beats with the rythm "Efiri tete" an indicziion thet his
chlpfnulncy_1§_f:u4 the ancient days.

On thé.death of Mana Kwame .Badwi &t Mansra, his cousin Kwabina
Kuma was enstooled on the throne, His mother was &dwoz Gyema. After
many years reign, Naha Kwabena Kuma died at an old
succeeded by his elder brother Brumu Ankoma, I 3s
during the time of Nana Brumu Ankoma, Asantehene Han
waged war on Gyaman, a territory in the Ivory Coast. The AS?antl

army commanded by Dadiasoabahene Nana Nti Panin arrived at the
battlefirld and encamped at Mensra, The other persomzlities included in
the Ashenti contingent were Lsomfohene and Nanz Akwawua, chief of Asafo,
a suburb of Kumasi., At Mansra, Nepa Nti Panin invited Nana Brumu
Ankoma to’ a551st in the war, in the name of the Aaa“teh,ne Without
hesitation, Nana Brumu Ankcma supplied thousand men a2nd a2rms which were
bows and arrows, their main weapon, The field was at Gyaman, the
capital of the Bona kingdom. The war lasted for two days. The Gyaman-
hene, Nana Pape was.captured and decapitated. At the same time, a
subject of Brumu Ankoma among the contingent seized a "Puduo" (sllver
bowl )" from the palace of the Gyamanhene. This "Puduo" is today in the
stool-room at’ Nwanse. ‘ . - :

[l f2
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”:”Thg’account_continﬁéﬁ that when the Ashanti troops had returned
to Kumasi, some six weeks later, the Dadiasoabahene called on Nana -

'”Brumu Ankoma at lMansra, He was on an errand of the Asantehene Nana . -

Opoku Ware, to collect "Apia too" (indemnities) in respect of the

Gyaman operation, The Mansrahene refused the payment, znd was reported
to havé told the emissary of the Asantehene that Mansrs was independent
and' owe alleglance to no tribe. To the utter surprise of the Mansra .
people, on ‘a Friday night, an army of Ashantis under the Dadiasoabahene
be51eged ansra and opened fire. In this fight, Mansra was decisively
beaten, and the town destroyed. Thousands of terror-stricken inhabitants
in the outlylng ten towns subsequently fled to Nkoransa; others went
beyond the river "Adre" and joined the Kabonya {Gonja) 'and the Grunshie
people, Aocordlng to one informant, Gyasehene Asamoa Yaw, aged 85 *
years, most of the desceéndants of those refugees are still in the- afore—
mentloned towns. ~ Thus Mansra was extirpated by the flght

ThHe story is told that Nana Brumu Ankoma was clalmed to be very
powerful’ and was a Warrlor. With his supernatural powers, he could -
vanish from the battlefleld ‘on the spur of the momeont. Despite such
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supernatural powers, he became 2 captive in this war and was
decapitated. The head was takoen. to Kumasi where a cast of the

© skull was taken in gold, and lies in the Prempeh Odwira, The skull
itself according te en account: scrves as "Lbosodee" on ceremonial -
sword It-is under the chorge of the Asomfohene of Kumesi, The
Ashﬂntls encenmped at Hensra for four days and looted the royal =
treasure. mostly gold dust and deutroyod the tovm, In memory .of” the
disaster, is the oath "Fida" (Friday) used by the descendants, Again,
no munual labour is allowed on the amniversary of this day.

The captain of the 4shanti army, the Dadiasoabzhene, prior to |
his departure, saw to it that the remnants of the Mansra people,
women and children, spared to ieke good the heéavy losses that had
been incurred, evacuated the devastated and denuded town, ' They were
made to settle on the bank of the river Kyiridi, to this Nana Bedlako
IV presumed it was due to the many casualties decomposed at Mansra.
The Dadiasoabahene furthermore directed that any game hunted and
killed on the land was: to bei well cured and sent through him for the
Asantehene. It was from this directory the new-settlement derived
the name Branam, .This arrangement lasted till’the capture of King
Prempeh I, - = ‘ ‘ = '

After this way, Branam became a vassal of Ashanti kingdom, The
Ashanti and other tributary tovms like Nkoranza had the people of :
Branam as their prey. They often visited the town and took away’
‘children, which result was a growing discontent that ‘Nana Kwabena
"Kuma, successor of the revered Brumu Ankoma, reported to the Dadiaso-
abahenie Nti Kuma who had succeeded Nti Panin who had died in the
Ashanti-Banda war, Nana Opoku Ware who was dissatisfied with the
state of affairs placed the government of Branam under the protection
of the Dadiasoabahene, Following this, Tano Agyei, nephew of the
Dadiasoabahene, became consul at Branam, He went there with the cult
Atie Kosua, At the same time, there was the Branam anccstral deity
called I"TE.W"‘ : E : F :

A year. afterwards when the 1ncesaant kldnappang ‘had ceased, Tano
Agyei informed the Branamhene of, his desire to settle on an arld and
uninhabited part of: the Branam land, He had explained to ‘the Branam-
hene that the presence of goats in the town was a taboo to the cult
"Atie Kosua", The Branamhene likewise told the consul that sheep
weré prohibited in the town owing to the "Tew" cult, Under those
clrcumstances, the Brenamhene lNane Kwabena Kuma II acceded to the
wishes of Tano Agyei, and appointed Gyane Yaw; a hunter, who accompa-
nied the consul into the bush in search of forest land

The now ruins of Nwase, 2§~m11estcf the modern town was located,
There was a fig tree at-the site chosen for settlement, The hunter
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gave the name of the tree as "Nwan", The place became the permanent
abode of Tano Agyei and his Ashanti party, and had the name Ifwase - .
meaning under the "Nwan' tree, The language of this particular

group of people was Ashanti Twi, No doubt, these Ashanti squatters
recognised the suzersinty of the Branamhene, Therefore, as a matter

of reupect' Naha Kwabena Kuma II detailed his nephew Yaw Sekyere to

join Tanc Agyei who assumed the role of Headman, This farming

. settlement later developed as other migrant farmers joined the settlers.

Kwasi Dagyaw succeeded Tano Agyei on his death. . Sems time during
his tenure. of office as Headman,: Nsawkawhene Ameyaw Kwame and his
subjects moved in e mass exodus from Nsawkaw to Aboabo which is in
the neighbourhood of 0ld Mwase, They.had fled from Gyaman invasion
which was the outcome of a civil fight between Sekwz and Badu people,
Nsawkaw was an ally to the latter, took the Sekwehene Kofi Lye a
prisoner and sacrificed him. The other refugees were the people of
Bznda with their chief Sahkyame, They lived at Briboo (Gulubo) near
Branam; Nana Akrosuma, chief of Badu and his people as fugitives
joined the people of Akete - a town three miles south of Nwase, All
the aforementioned towns which were occupied by the fugitives are on
the Branam Stool land,

"L On'the death of Nana Kwabena Kuma II, his son Kwasi Bediako
succeeded him, His mother was Abena Dwamenaa., This was when King -
Duah III alias Prempeh I ruled Ashanti. In this reign was the historic
episode of the exile of King Prempeh I to the Seychelles Island, when
the European, meaning the British, occupied the Ashanti klngdom. Nana
Kwasi Bediako willingly submitted Branam to the sovereignty of Takyiman-
hene, Nana Ameyaw Yaw,: ghis happened when Captain Fuller was the hief
Commissioner of Ashanti,

" ‘Just within the same period King Prempch I was a prisoner, on the
invitation of Captain Fuller, the fugitive Banda and Nsawkaw peoplée’
returned to their former abode and rebuilt close to the ruins of their
respective old towns, It was not until some four years after the
enstoolment of the present Asantehene, Nana Osel Agyeman Prempeh IT,
that the majority of the Badu people with their chief Nana Kwame Awuah
evacuated Wurompo and Akete., They. built themselves a new township
near the upper stream of the river Tain, on the Nsawkaw Stool land,

A good section of the Badu people remained at Akete and their leader
today, Nana Kwabena Kra,‘has the status of Kyidomhene (Commander of
the Redr Body guard) in the Branam Traditional Area.

Nana Kwasi Bedlako i dled and other successive chiefs were Kwaku
Domasa, Kwame Goah, Kwame HMensah, Yaw Bediako II and Yaw Bediako III.
There was-peace and tranqu111ty ln the area during their rule..




Sie Kwaku, the son of Akosua Dwamena, succeeded Nana Yaw Bedizko
LiTe=—Ft=18 recalled_that Mana Sie Kwaku was & witness in a land
dispute between the chiefs of Wenchi and Ewisa.: The former claimed
ownership of the parcel of land occupied by the latter., According
to the story, the land in dispute belonged to the Branam Stool, and
with the river Atwene a3 the natural boundary with Wenchi, The
Ewisa people were obviously sguatters and immediate subjects of
Wenchi, The Branamhene on whom the ultimate ownership rested should
have intervened to dispute the right claimed by the Wenchihene though
he was summoned as a witness; but for the quest for c'o.'r.d notwith-
standing the history of the land, testified that the °w1sahene owned
the land in dispute. According to the present Branamhene, his prede-
cessor the witness at the time, allowed himself to be influenced
pocunlarlly by the Ewisahene Nana Kwadwo Arku, However, ‘the matter
was decided against Ewisa as the court maintained that the natural
border between the contestants is the river Subin, Thus, Branam lost
a vast portion of land.

Some time after the suit, about 22 years ago, following drought
the people of Nwase moved and founded the present settlement which was
nostalgically named after that which they had abandoned - Nwase, The
Branamhene Sie Kwaku subseguently joined his people at the new settle-
ment, and the seat of government wias removed permanently from Branam
to Nwase.

3 It is recounted that & year after the foundation of modern Nwase,
the Dadiasoabahene Nana Kwasi Adusei visited the Branamhene at Nwase,
The day was a Wednesday and Ofomanhene Kwasi Dua called on Obosomfo
Kofi Drobo, the medium of Kwaku Firi cult. The Ofumanhene who claimed
the land of Nwase as Ofuman Stool property, demanded from the medium
Kofi Drobo a tripartite share of the proceeds thaet accrued-by the
performances of the said cult. According to Obosomfo Kofi Drobo, he
was possessed by the cult- in a forest when on a hunting, Prior, he
was a chapel-keeper of the Drobo liethodist Church. An adherant,

Kofi Nsiah, stated that the cult Kwaku Firi, is one of the more
protective in "our" times, It claims of special powers to combat
witcheraft ~ to protect and deliver from it, Furthermore, the cult
has succeeded in winning the interest of a considerable part of the -
population, even including many christians, some of whom visit the
shrine annually, during the "Apo" festivel (spring festival). Besides
the festival occasion, others call in on Wednesdays when rituals

are observed, Hence, Wednesdays are regarded as holy days at Nwase,

Obosomf'o Kofi Drobo reported the claim mede on him by the Ofuman-
hene to Nana Sie Kweku; subsequently, the Ofumanhene swore the oath
of Ashanti to confirm his claim and the Branamhene responded with a
counter claim, The next day, Thursday, the lNehirahene Nana Tabi Yaw
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went to ¥wase and alsc claimed ownership in rcspect of the one and
the same land, on which Nwase is established. For the effect of

the claim, Nana Tabi Yaw swore the Ashanti ocath. INichira lies eight
miles north of Nwase; and Ofumaa is located some 16 miles south-east
of Nwase. 3

The chief's of Ofuman and Nohira as claimants instituted separate
actions in*support thercof at the Asantchene's Court Bl. The court.
after a year's hearing under the presidency of the Antoahene Nana.
Asenso, gave judgment in favour of the Ofumanhcne. The obvious
reason for the rift between the claiments and Nwase was the tremendous
increase in wealth of the cult Kwaku Firi,

~ With the financial assistance of Obosomfo Kofi Drobo, the Branam-
hene appealed against the judgment to the District Magistrate's Court
at Kumasi, The appeal was allowed, and the judgment of the Native
Court was set aside - thus the claim of the Ofumanhene was dismissed
and judgment entercd for the Branamhene, On appealling to the Lands
Court at Kumasi by the Ofumenhene against the decision, the matter
was referred back to the Tuobodom Native Court for hearing "de novo™,
While the action was pending at the Netive Court, the Ofumanhene
Nana Kwasi Dua was deposed by his own subjects. They vehemently
opposed the land litigation, which had ruined Ofuman with heavy debt.

"Kwasi Fa was eclected and censtooled as Ofumanhene, Just at the same

time, Nana Sie Kwaku for loss of his sight and old age abdicated the
chief'ship, With regards to the claim of the Nchirahene Nana Tabi Yaw,
he died when the suit was pending 2t the Tribunal of the Asantehene,
His successor, Nana Kwasi Duku alias Kwasi Kwawe, withdrew the action,

Obosomfo Kofi Drobo, the son of Abena Asamoaa, was elected and =
enstooled in place of Sie Kwaku, He had the stool name Kwasi
Bediako IV. No sooner after his enstoolment than he petitioned the - L
Government of Ghana and was clevated to the status of Paramount Chief,
To guide the inner social and political consciousness of the Branam
traditional area, Nana Kwasi Bediako IV as Omanhene created the
following offices ~ the Krontihene at Branam; Adontenhene was bestowed
on the head of Tano Agyei lineage who was formerly -O0dikro of Nwase;
and the Odikro of Akete as Kyidomhene, These sacred offices were
in compliance with Akan institutions and custom - in recognition of
their respective distinguished services,

Nena Kwasi Bediako IV applied to the Tuobodom tribunal and
was substituted in the land case comicenced by the ex-0fumanhene
Kwasi Dua against his predecessor Nena Sie Kwaku, According tc Nana
Bediako IV, while anxiously waiting to hear the date on which the
suit was listed, the Ofumanhene Nana Kwasi Fa requested to- discontinue
the land dispute. In vain did the Ofumanhene have a good but an’
unfortunate reason for this., He wanted the Akete village be annexed
to Ofuman, when the suit was withdrawn, It was this intention that
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the Branamhene refused, and ruled out all possibilitics of reconcilia-
tion by peaceful means, hitherto, the matter is pending at the Tribunal,

Naena Kwasi Bediako IV still performs dual duties, as the supreme
ruler of his traditional area, he is at thc same time the medium of the
Kwaku Firi cult. [Nana Bediako IV, fired with zeal and patriotism, has
since his reign centred on development of thc Nwase town, In his
pre-cnstoolment period the construction of a 14 mile road linking
Wenchi-Nwase-Nchira was undertaken by him, Again, he had the local
school and hostel buildings crocted at his own expense. Though
illiterate, NMana Bediake IV is a light to illumine his people.

Every occupant of thc Branam stool has the following appellation
indicative of the social events and the importance of his forerunners: -

"Atwere Bediako Brempon, Oburum Ankoma nana a nakyiri
fi Mansra
Nfutu dwane a yemo no akonkon
Eti brekese a, ¢so yee ne ademire nam;
Odenkyemniampa oda ebun mu na opue firi a QOkukuban tua nano.
Eti pasare a, ne tirim awosea apa
Esono Oburum Ankome ne Odampagya Nana Bediako
Makye aku; makye abraw",

(Foble Atwere Bediako, Grandchild of Oburum Ankoma
that hails from Mansra :

Dust that cannot be carried on the shoulders

The noble that carries canes and thongs

The crocodile that lives in an abyss; it comes out and
has squirrel on the mouth -

The aged that has no sympathy

Oburum &nkoma the clephant, and wonderful Nana Bediako

Good morning to you; Good morning).
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DYNASTY OF CHIEFS

Kwame Badwi Died
Kwabena Kuma S

Brumu Ankoma .

Kwabena uma IT 5

Yaw Bediako T "
Kwaku Domasa "

Kwanme Goah 1

~ Kwame llensah "
Yaw Bediako II “
Yaw Bediako III i
Sie Kwaku Abdicated

Kwasi Bediako IV

DYNASTY OF QUEEN-MOTHERS

Afua Fofie Died
Yawa Domkyertia u
Kosua Djama e
Ama Chorkole n
Adwoa Torhaw u
Afua Fofie II "
Akua Nsowa R
Akua Dapaa 4/

Ama Yerninye



Footnotes

1. Information given by Kwasi Badu of the Institute of African
Stadies (Music Section).

2, Used for carving mortar,
3. Information given by Gyasehene Asamoa Yaw,

4, According to the Stool Clerk, this was on Sept. 30, 1959.
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TRADITION OF WENC' (JANKYI) = PRONG-AHAFO

The early tradition of the lenchi people is spreuted in legend,
Their ancestors came out of a hole ih the ground at Asomanini near the
source of the river Ayansu, 9 miles southewest of Wenchi. The people
occupied a little off the hole after they had come from the ground.
This site is known today as Bonsd. Asaseba Odinse an elderly woman,
led the peoplés She was accompanied by her children namely, Toa, Doon,
Anto, Anye Amoaampon and Bowi Ansa. The name of the husband of Asaseba
Odinse -is now loste According to the account, the chief who was to
bring the rcar when from the hole did not comes The myth continues that
one Nkroma immedistely he had come out of the hole which was dark saw
the light and yelled. -As a result, the chief withdrew into the hole.
For this reason, Nkroma was later killed. The surviving descendants of
Nkroma are the members of Afua Mankoto house - in other words the
occupant of the Atonfoso or the Werempe stoole It is said, that light
was a taboo to the indigenous Wenchi people when they lived in the hole.
In view of the breaoh of this taboo the early settlers named the town
they bullt as WANKYI. Besides, the people hzd in the past been called
"YEFIRI" though today this word is rarely heard but has since been
preserved as the epigram of the short drum of the Wenchihene which is
"Firitete"s "Yefiri" has come to have eonnototion of "eame out from
the ground". In remembrance of the taboo, sheep for sacrifice on the
"blackened™ stool is slaughtered in the night; so like wise during the
annual festival, the stools are carried after derk to the river side
for rituals and purification.1

The dialect of the people was and still is Bono (Brong). ALccording to
Obaapanin Yaa Darko a daughter of Akua Fokuo of MNana Akua Frema line,
the members cof the indigenous dominant clan were of the Asene group.

There is yet another tradition that the leader of the people was
‘Nana Tabirekuo Anye Amanlampen. His sister was the Queen mother Mana
Asaseba Odinse2s The story is told that an animal of the steppe like
a pig (in Twi: Wankee) made a burrow from wivich came numerous people.
When the people had ascended, the ancestral stool for the chief followed.
The chief himself brought the rear but reeollected that the stool-carriers
had left behind in the hole an iron plate on which the stool rested.

This iron plate is known in Twi as 'Kantal,

A stool-garrier descended immediately into the hole to collect it. A
hunter on expedition nearby saw the host of people. He exolaimed from
where they had come. The animal "Wankyee escaped and the burrow began
to £ill up. As the people saw the situation at onece drew out from the
burrow a golden ladder by which the members of the royal lineage had
elimbed. This ladder is today the relic of the deseendants of Asaseba
Odense, The commoners slited up by a chain, Obaapanin Yaa Darkoa, the
present head of the lineage of Asaseba Odense at the time of the field
work denied the existence of the golden ladder, The stool~sarrier whose
name is not remembered had succeeded in pushing upwards the "Konta beforc




B

the hole replenished and trepped him, In view of the incident many
regalias of the chief remained in the hole. Foll lowing the animal, tho
people named theipr settlement as Wenkyi now spelt as Jenchi; for it
was through it, that the people came cut, However that may be, all
traditions agree that the oarly chief of the people was Tabrlku Anye
Amanlampon.
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. The sebtlement of the people ‘at’ Asomanini was 51taated on a hlfr:ay
,and'the place wes overcrowded. They therefore moved to Ahweae, Whlc'
Jand was discévered by a hunter of ﬁno chiefs The town of Ahwene'
according to ths present fenchihene had 177 quurters oY wards. °
Sometine after tne people had settled at Ahwene, 2 hunter o the chief
on e&podltlon met a hunter from iTkwante near Sunyani, on the bank of
the river Tano,'at the upper stream. This river obviously became the
natural border be%ween the towns of Ahwene .and loranta. s

Tradition has 4t that the indigenous lezders, the chief and the

elderly woman in other words the Queen mother, ccite out from the cave
"with their respectlve ancestral stools and a sword Jnown as "Mkatia.

In addition - they possessed the cults Drobo“eSﬁ nralm, Gyanse {which - hab

the appellation in Brong "Okofo, oko gu aban wa wriol, destroved of towas")
and Guakuro. .It .is said that the medium fop. ihe three 6ults was Okomfo
Boas He carried Drobokese on his head; Gjanso on’ the right shonlder,
These cults are today attached to the stool of 7ench1 as ancestral delity.

The stool of the Queen mother ig® aescrlbe& as belng red bead in the
from of "Dufua', 3 and encircled with gold in the middle, Besides, there
was another hea d solely for fertility to increase the population, - Both
beads are kept in the stoolerocom, It is in memory of the beads that the
horn of the chief 'has the epigram "Ahiene koko (ved bead). About 27

years ago, during the time of Nana Kwasi boakye that the fertlllty bead
got missen and not recovered to this day.

The Queen mother Nana Asaseba Odinser ded ot Ahwene. She wag
succeeded by her daughter Atoa Yaa who tradition claims presented a .
thousand red beads to Asantehene Nana Osei Tutu lipimsok. By the gift

. Nana Atoe. Yaa had the appellation "Gyempem adu, gﬁoto kese a owen ahwene"
-literary "eustodian of precious beads", With the reign “of Nana Atoa Yaz,
on every Thursday she sent her "Kotumsofo" that is, servants who were '
spinsters in the royal household to bashelors, They collected the dirty
clothes of the men for laundry in the rdver Ahemesu, The Queen mother
sat behind the "Kotunsofo" .on the river bed during the laundry.

On ths deuth of Pana Tabrlku Anye Amaniampon, hlS nephew, Anye
Amaniampon was enstooled. In his {ime . the. Ashantis under Nana Opoku .
Ware fought with themDormaslwhoup chief yas Tana Opon Panin,. ¢
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The battle field wes the area today kmom 25 Suntreso, a suburb of Kumasi.
The. Dormas on flight, sought refuge from Nane inye Amaniampon. They were
granted land at Chiraa for settlements The place was Abesim. Another
account is.thet Nana Yeboa was the Dormahene during the opsration.

The Ashantis heard of the Dormas in the neithourhood of Ahwene end
resolved to invade them: The story is’ told, thot the ancestral deity
Drobokese forewarnéd them of an event: ‘He therefore referred the
Wenchihene to consult the other deity Gyanso Gyanswa about the predictiorn.
When this was done, the Gyanso Gyanswa cult demanded a sheep for the
observance of cértain rituals. The péople of Wenchi found it difficult
to obtain & sheep and in order to decoy the deity, had a goat which wog
dubbed with white- orcher to depict a sheeps This animal was presented to
the Gyanso Gyanswa cult accordingly. The trick was detected by the ocult
when the medium had fallen into trance, and became annoyed of the false
representations. The legend follows that before -the consultation of
Gyanso Gyanswa cult, the Drobokese cult had. ‘directed further the eonsultant
that "Sensam and Some“ (kind of leaves) should be placed, on the junction
of Abesim and thwenes The "Sensam" leaves were to be dubbed red and_put
on the path which led to Abesim. In the manner, the "Some™" leaves were
to be coated white and placed towards Ahwene .

The deity Gyanso Gyanswa still infuriated and in’ order to hafe the
Wenchis punished, intentionally put the leaves mistakenly, contrary to
the instructions of the Drobokese culte The notlon about the leaves were
that the whité "some" leaves showed the place o: the ally; and the "red
sensam" leaves led to the enemy. No doubt, tix.s was done with the view
that Tenchl should be invaded instead of Dorma. o

On a Thursday the Ashantis army on a march followed the dlrectlon ox
the "Sensam" leaves to the disadvantage of the TWenchis. The distance
from the junotion to Ahwene according to the present Wenchihene is
estimated 4o be about 15 miles. The Wenchis were attacked and defeated.
The main weapons used were spears and sllngs. The Queen- mother and her
servants at the river side for the usual laundry as already stated,
became captives and taken' to Kumasi. \Tradltlon has it that this war
brought about the depopulation of Wenchi as many of the people scattered
and found independent, towns, some of which are Mkawle Ashanti, Abrepo, and
Abuakwa near Kumasi, Sefwi, Dadeso near Enchi, Suaem in Wassaw and Niaroful
and Nzima., The people that remained settled in groups near the ruins of
Ahwene, at the confluence of rivers Chimira and Trome which they
nostalgically named after that they had abandoned - Ahwene,

This day of invasion of Ahwene by the Ashantis, Thursday, was from after

the war enshrined as the national oath of Tenchi = "Kuruyaw a ogya tua
ano" (Thursday with fire). Furthermore, in view of the goat substituted

for. a sheep, it beeame a taboo :to sacrlflce a goat on the ancestral

stool even to this-day. -
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Accordinz to oral:traditions when Nana 'toa 7ea was in captivity in
Kumasi, ' the ancestral deities at Wenchi perfor.ed zn oracle. In con-
sequence oi .the observance there was a thunderous rainfall at Kumasi,
The flash of lighting hit a fig tree and there was many casualties. The
tree known as "Osraman gyedva" was located at wlhere Mmorom ward in
Kumasi has'been built. It is recounted that the isantehene consulted
his cult "Adsumen tea (Tano) Dwomo". The medium, Okomfo Tude, disclosc’.
to the Asantehene that unless IMana Atoa Yaa was returned to Jenchl ‘othei-
wise the Ashanti kingdom would devastate. Consequently, Nana Atoa Yaa
was without hesitation carried shoulder hlgh from Kumasi via Akropons to
Ahwene. She was accompanied by some Ashanti girls perhaps as a geaturn
from the Asantechene. The descendants of those Ashanti girls today
are retinue in the Jueen mother's household,
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On the return of Nana Atoa Yaa, Tenchi became a tributary and
subjugated to Ashanti, The people of Wenchi were made to pay‘trlbnuu of
elephant skin on which the Golden Stool was placed.

From that period, the cult Gyanso Gyanswa was given the nickname
"Guamakuro" literary meaning "destroyer of towns" This was in refercnce
to the cult having caused the destructionr of Ahwene as a test of its
power, Similarly, Nana Atoa Yaa had the appellation "Ampofo Toa, a oto
suo samen gyedua' literary meaning "the rain fell and fig tree uprouted
for the sake of Ampofo. Toa . .

Nang Atoa Yaa resumed her offices The chief Anye Amaniampon haid
diled before her return; therefore she ruled the people till her death:
The neighbours of “Jenchi were Nsoko (Nsawlaw), Jsuatre, Tokyiman iHanso
(Techiman lanso) and Hurubra otherwisc Torobo.:

Ohene Doon was enstooled, He was the son of Asaseba Odinse and
succeeded his brother. " Nana Atoa Yaa was:succeeded by her daughter Afon
when she dieds In this time was the Jukwa ward which he participated.
On his return from the campaign he became indisposed and died at
Kobiriso on Takyiman—Wenchi roads '

Nana into succeeded his brother Ohenc Docn, He reigned with Hano
Adomaa as {ueen mother. Nothing of ihterest is remembered in his time.

On- the death of Mana Anto the heirs were minor, Therefore katis
Kwasi who wes Gyasehene was elected in succession. IHe was the son of
Demoa.s During his tenure of office, I'ana Nkatia Iwasi proved himsell o
be brave and an.affable ruler, An account is given that his sister
Anoba, was married to Nansz Pitoo of llansra Mo, Anoba guarrelled with hﬁr
rival and reported to her brother Nans Mkatia Kwasi who deteiled people: &
investigated the cause, Nana Pitoo was annoyed to see the envoys from .
Wenchi and reported to MNena Nkatia Kwasi, who once more sent a messenger
now without the sister to Nena Pitoo, Ilater, Nana Nkatia declared war
against lMansra ko and took the field in person, Mansra Mo suffered a.



defeat in which lNana Pitoo wes caught and dicapitated. The people of
Wenchi had many captives of either sexes; the men were killed, but the
women were mgrried t6 some of the men of Wenchi - most of the off'sprinss
of the union are available at Tenchi todaye

The Asantehene Nafis, Kwasi Obodum heard of the incident and sent for
Mana Nkatla Kwasi, his sister Anoba and the elders of Venchi. After the

Asantehene ha&.1nterrogated them, he ordered the execution of Fana Niatia

Kwasi for ha wving exceeded his powerse The Head of the Wenchi Blood
royals, Ofosu, pleaded for mitigation of the sentence through the
counsellors of ‘the Asantehene, Accord;ngly, Nana Kwasi Obodum tempered
mercy with justice and commuted the sentence to one of caution. But the
Asantehene told the Abusuapanin Ofosu that the future succession of Nana
Nkatia Kwasi line to the "Yefiri" stool has éeen repudiated; but that
group of family could be regarded as royalss

Another account of this Wenchi-iiansra iio war is that the people of
Mansra Mo were the neighbours of the Wenchis on the northern border,
The Mansra Mo people often stole the domestic a.xmals of the Wenchi
people. - Such conduct was deemed by the Wenchihene as provocative with
the view to ejecting them from the land and usurp ite As a result lana
Nkatia Kwasi with his army invaded Mansra lo. The battle-field was at
the bank of the river Brumu and lasted a week. The people of lansra lo
reported to the Asantehene of the invasion and decgpitation of their
chief by the Wenchis. Following that, the Wenchihene Nana Nkatia Kwasi
and his elders were summoned to Kumasi. After the matter had been gone
into by the Asantehene,’Nana Nkatia Kwasi was dirled on the cheeks with
"Iyiapea" (a kind of tree used as chewing stick) to death. To this

allusion according to the informant is the ceremonial sword "Afona Nkatis"

(Cat. I.64.208).7 This sword is used for swearing by every newly
elected Omanhene and Divisional chiefs within tThe traditional area.
Furthermore, the Gyase stool which was for the family of Nana INkatia
Kirasi was seized by the Asantehene =nd handed to the Queen mother INana
Afie Duakos By so doing, the lineage of Nana lkatia Kwasi was deprived
from future occupation on the stool and renounced for evers

Alrora Fi, an elder of the Blood royals became the regent.
Nothing of interest happefied during the interregnum and he died.
The descendants of Akwora Fi are the Ankobea division and occupy the
stool as Ankobeshene (Chief of the Home Guard),

Ohene (yano, son of Afpa Dankonto Hemaa, was elected and asaende&
to the chiefship. Dankonto was the name of a ward at Ahwene.
Following the repudiation of the lineage of Nana Nkatia Iwasi even to
the Gyase stool, Nana Ohene Gyane bestowed the statues of Gyasehene to
Takyi. In appreciation of the honour, Takyi tock upon himself the
surname Gyane and was known and called Takyl Gyane.
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This' event hapoened when Nana Ohene Gyane had moved and settled at
Adsagye as.will be seen. Takyl Gyane was made responsible of the
Kontor ward at Wenchi. This area is the neighbourhood around the
Police Stetion and the lorry park. The ward consists of two sects of
people ~ the Ntas and the Kyenantwos; the former under the leadership
of Ano Gyan n*eceded the latter in occupation of the place., The Nt
people had mlgrwted from the Upper Volta.and stayed a while at
Kyenantwo from where.they were led by‘ﬁhe Kontonsohene to the
Wenchihene Ilana Ohene Gyane.9

In the time of Nana Ohene Gyane, he moved with the people to the
bank of the Adaagye stream where he had built with his friend
Twafohene Akrotua. The ruins of Addagye settlement is now on the
north-westword of modern enchi. This place is today known as "Kaamu" -
a Brong word meaning mausoleum., Nana Ohene Gyene died at an old age
at Adaagye.

Tradition has it that on the death of ilana Uhene Gyane the possil
heirs were minors and the Nueen mother Nana e became regent. Sho
moved the people to Brobo Nkwanta., It is said ¢.at an oracle disclosed
that the spirits of the ancestrors were dissatisiied with their stay at
Adoagye with her people. No sooner after this second occupation at
Adaagye than was the second Ashanti-Gyamen fishits Venchi which was a
vassal of Ashanti supplied an army under the command of the woman regent,
Nana Frema. After the eampaign she returned safely home, The Asantehene
Nana Bonsu Panin, it is saild was disturbed with the presence of Nana
Frema and remsrked that he would not see that & woman went to the
battle-field. This of course was a taboo to the Ashantis in time of
war, Nana Frema replied that she had no suitable male to take over
from her.

There was another attack on the Gyamans. Ilana Frema who was still
regent once more mobilished her foreces to aid the Ashantis.
Notwithstanding the previous remarks by *he Asantehene, Nana Frema
insisted to lead her troops. At that tiwe, Amenlwatia Penin was at
Bwisa (Awisa) with his Ashanti army on manoeuvre. He was directed by
the Asantehene %o see that Nana Frema did not accompany her contingent
to the front. Buy yet there was no male heir to command the Yenchi
army&%rlJe Lsantehene who was alarmed at the situation oopsequently
sent to Nana Frema a male and a female in gratitude of her loyal servicec.
This had the allusion "Nana Frema, obzabesia a oto atuo ne atwereboo ne
atuduro na one mmarima ko ko" literary "MNana _*eﬂ%, the weman who buys
arms and ammunitions and joins men to war", The two persons presented
to Nana Freme were called Dahenease; the male died earlier-and the
female survived and had many issues. Slone sl Y ;




The -children of Nana Frema who were he:r.r-—presﬁ.mptives were minor c£:.l
could not aecompany the troops faor the Gyaman ca:npalgn. Just at the
same time, a group of people led by Lrramos and his sister Birago were
sent to Nana Frems by the ASantehene Nana Bonsu Panin. They hailed fro.
Kwadwokrom in Kumasi., The ruins of this place is the site of the Zoo
gardens. The descendants of Abramoo were later adopted into the rvlz:g
family as will be seen later.
The Ashanti Captain Amankwatia Panin was still on exercises with his .
troops' at Dwisa preparing for the attack on the Gyamans.Y Nana Freme
presented three young men from Abramoo group to Amankwatia to select
one fit and capable of leading the enchi army. Cne of the three young
men, Abrefa Iwadwo, son of Atas Wonta alias Afua Duako was chosen.
The relations of Abrefa Kwadwo refused to allow him to go to the front;
for, they could not provide him with travellin; kit %o befit the office.
As a result, Nana Frema supplied young Abrefa IGjadwo with six cloths,
$70 ooaTEe hinnlets (Bommo), & mat (Ntonkete or J.»rolcc-_) and a bowl,
Besides, she detailed her slave Anti Pim and %.at of her brother Ampofro,
called Kra Ampof‘ro, to attend to him while on tlle campaign. Gyanadu,
native of Adanse was the father of Abrefs Kwadwo,!0

It is reecounted, that at the batile-field young commander Abrefa.
Kwadwo was carried at the back of one of the slaves, preceded by the
cult Ganso Kofo, which received bullets fired by the enemy. At the
same time another slave brought the rear to protect Abrefa Kwadwo from
any gun shot. He returned with his entourage to Venchi after the
-campaing. ' He was unhurt and chose to stay with the Queen mother Nana
Frema insvead of joining his parents. This conduct of Abrefa Kwadwo
brought up a quarrel between Nana Frema and the family of Abrefa Kwadwo.

The elders of. Uenchi invited Nsokochene Nana Dagyawall who arbitrated

on the matter. The deeision of the arbiter was against the relatives
cf Abrefs. Kwadwo. Abrefa Kwadwo grew up in the royal house. He
recelved the: first impact of chiefship oculture that was to shatter the .
capsule in which his mind was enclosed and set him on new paths whose 5
course and far objectives could not be knovm at the time. At that
period, to receive any such form of Wraining was then, by a non member
of the royal bldod, extremely rare. He came to.know l'ana Frema most
intimately and through her entered into the customs of the royal family.

Sometime afterwards, Nena Frema became indisposed. An oracle was
consulted and it revealea. that except she bequeathed the Oueen-motners-‘_ 5
to the relatives of young Abrefs Kwadwo, she would not recover, Nana
Frema all that time had dual responsibility as Queen-mother and regent.
Following the revelati on, Nana Frema with the consent of her counc:.lJ_or.J
decreed that the relstions and progeny of Abrefa Kwadwo sheuld be
privileged to become legible to the Queen-méther stool. But Nana Frema
stressed that her .authority and properties as to chieftainey should not
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‘ pass on to them.. Ama Suaa of that line therefore was elected and
ig cnstboleﬂ as. ﬂueen-mqther, while Nana Frema remained as regent until
b‘ her deauh. This ‘opened a new page in the tradition and constitution
? of Wenchl dynasty as to the affiliated members to the indigenous
v royel line as the second rullnﬂ family, :
5 :
# The el&ers—ln—coun011 when Nana Frems died nominated Abrefa Kradio

and was enstooled as Wenchihene. This was:in appreeciation of his los=l
services towards the "Yefiri" stool and the person of Nana Frema. As
has been stated.earlier, nevertheless, Abrefa Iirzdwo arnd his linc wére
not ‘truec members of the blood royals but adoptcd. Otherwise the family
from which successive chiefs were selected is of the group of the
indigenous settlers who regard themselves as i frong‘tbngue Mand
tredition "Yefirifo" themselves as "those wio c-.e out of a hole in

the ground", According to the tradition, the =~ a”‘ "fe;lrlfo" is o
distinct the descendants of the ‘aboriginal settlers from the lineage

of the immigrants into their midst. Some of sgch'p30ple‘Were fugitives
-from Adanse, Takyiman, Nkoransa, Forikrom and other parts in Ashanti

as a result of inter-tribal wars. :

£

Nana Ame Suas had died and was succeeded by her sister Ama Kuma
before the enstoolment of Abrefa Kwadwo. But a2s stated earlier, by
virtue of the absolute declaration of ’ana Frems, her properties werc
inherited by Lkua Fokuo alias Yisas. She was the mother of Yaa Darkoa,
an informunt in this field. Though Ama Kuma was the recognised Queen
mother but ‘ilua Fokuo performed all duties of the office at fest1v1u1

Nana Abrefa Kwadwo with an army accompanied Adu Bofuor the
Gyasewahene of Iumasi to the Ashanti-"Hua sa! (Bwe) campaing.
This war lasfed three years and the Ashantis won the field. After
the wer, llana Kofi Kakari who was the Asantehenc vewarded Fana Abrefa
Kwadwo with "Adon dwa" and- bestowed upon him, the rights and privileges
of a chief in accordance with the Ashanti custom and constitution.
On account of the remarks made. by the Auantehedc, a horn with the

epigrem

“Dee Kalari kae, me wie renfi da" 1¢terary,
“what Kakari said shall not be forg cten“ -

wWas 1ntroduced by Nana ﬁbrefa Kiradwo .

Acoora_n5 to" the oral tradltlon fenCﬂl, nsuatre, DuayaW—Nkwanta
Nsoko (Wsawlkaw), Chirea and Takylman (lechlman), claim to be-of the
1nd1genous Brong tribe. Tradition asserts, that lakylman Wwas invaded by
the Venchis following a misunderstanding oetveog their resPEthve chiefs.
Nana Abrefa Eq%dwo was still the Henchlnene and lana Kwabena Fofie was
Tekyimanhene . .The Wenchi. troops encamped at :yampembooso and that
of Takyiman at Jema. The Asantehene Nana Acqow_“onsu, who +had succceded




Nana Kofi Xalkarl, on hearing of the occurrence, detailed the Jamasihene
Nana Brobey to intervene and settle the differences. In the course of
the arbitration at Jama, a gun was suddenly fired from the Takyimen camp J
At once Fight ensued between the two factions, Tenchi and Takyimen,

A formidable army from Nkoranss under their chicef Nena Effa Guakuro
together with the retinue of the Jamasihene openly declared themselves
allies of the Wenohis. The poople of Talkyiman wabk overran and fled to
Gyaman-. There was no booty for the Wenchis and allies.

While tae Talyimon ’}'eoplc were on the flee, firved at the Nkyiraahene
Nana Kvasi Krave at Nkylra but survived it. This earned him the appel-
lation "Bontonku" meaning “survivor of gunshot during street fight".
Immediately the news reached 'enchi, the Takyiians were pursued up to

the Adawizso stream - another name for the river Tain at the down

stream. There was a d.esparate fight at Adawiaso in which the enchis
were determined mor'e than ever not only to defert the enemy but also to
capture their chief Nana Kirabena Fokies This occasioned such tremendous

loss of livesto Takyimsn; in consequence of h'ch emerged their ocath

"M" (I swear the bank of the Tain). This oath is used
together with their original oath "Wukude! (Wecmcsday) The surviving

Tak;ylmans continued the flight to Gyaman.

" \uu :

Soruatinc latér, the Fatibene cult still at Brisa pred.‘n.cted t‘wt e
the Wenchis: should prepare for an invasion from somedfhere. As.a resuld
of this,"therg was a mass exodus of the womenfiolk and children to
Sawsaw, How . 15 miles on Wenchi=-Sunyani road. Af fterwards the remaining -
Wenchis with the chief Nana Abrefa Kradwo were obligefl to join at .
Sawsaw where after a sojourn moved to MNkoransa. Nana Ef'fa G—uakm:'o Was
§till the Nkoransshene. Wenchi vas desertede.

When the ‘enchis were fugitives at Nkoransa, the Takw.!nanhene sent
Nana Pape of Gyaman, other informents :Lven the name as Agyeman, to a2ct’
as a plenipotentiary for him in arranging terms of friendship with Wenchi.
This was perhaps for fear that once they were conquered; the Wenchis'
might govern Lhem.. The Wenchihene = in = council agreed to the negotia-—
tion. There was a general meeting of Takyiman and Venchi at Jama,
attended by representatives of the Asantehene. The names of the
delegates are not remembered. In the presenoe of those present, Wana
Abrefa Kwadwo and the Tekyimanhene Nana Gyako smoked a peace pipe by
"drinking medicine" on behalf of their respective subjects. Now after
this event, the Venchis re-occupied their abandoned town. Tradition
claims that lana Abrefa Kwadwo remaired in the house of Nana Frema and
ruled for many years and died at an old age, - :




Kwarme Bene was enstooled in succession of Ifana Abrefa Kwadwo. He
was the son of Nana Frema. - In the time of Nane Xwame Bene originated
the fight between Banda and Mo. It is said that the Bandas wanted the
Wenchis to assist them but Nana Bene after consultation with th-
ancestral deity, Drobo Kese Ampim, refuscd. The Nsokohene Kru Kwame,
Baduhene Alcrosums and Seikwshene Bekoi were the allies of the .Ja".-'_l(l-_&s.
The former was a vassal of and lived at Wenchi. The Banda and allies
hooted and snobbed the deity of its advice %to the llenchihene. The los
with Nkoranza on their side inflicted a heavy defeat on the Banda and
allies at Sabre, ¥ The Baduhene was killed and his Gyasehene Awua without
courage to return home and report the news died with his chief through
suleide. The Wenchils at this period lived at Adaagye. '

The Yenchis saw that the Badus and some of the allies were on the .
retreat unc‘_ being pursued by the 'os, with thirty guns drove the ilos in-
rescue of the Badusﬁ In view of the philanthropic pction showmn by
the Tenchis, a section of the surviving Banda pcople mostly the Ligbes
chose to live with them while the Nafana: spealiing uect of them sought

refuge .at Akomadan, v The Ligbes were the Moslcu group of Bgndas. The

Nsokohene with the remnant of his force fled to .boabo on Wenchi stool
land. The periocl of this incident was in tho' tize . of Nans Kwaku Dua
IIT, 1% Asanjohency Even whgn the Nefena Bandas later left Akomadap te

return to their former abode, the moslem group ot ¥enchi refused to
join them; :unstead, they appealled to the. Jeachihene for land to
settle on. This was after the arrest of the isentehene and henco
the influx of Idgbes at ‘enchi,

It is recalled that prior to ths arrest of ue Asantehene MNana
Kwaku Dua III, a market was established by I'ena XKweme Bene. The
Asantehene héard +hdt most of the main livestock on the market werg
sheep, -He therefore sent his stool-carrisr Bonsu Boam as Censul at
Wienchi. [This envoy was,accompanied by his wife Aniskyire, The
progeny of Boqsu Boanm and spouse live at. enchi %o this day. The
dut:l.es of ’c‘q,v Consul was to receive f‘rom the TTenchihene sheep being

iarket tools :Co” the' Asamtehn,nb.

Nane Kwame Bene with an arny fought on ;he side of the Ashantis
against Hkoransa., Nana Kofi Fua was the T sransahene and Nana . Kmaku
Dua IIT ruled 4shanti. This campaign was before.the arrest of the
Asantehenc. Thé war arose when the. IELOI‘CLW].SCJ..H.CHG refused to send back
the Mampong-Ashanti refugees resq.dent at Nkoransa, when requested by
the Asantehene to do so, The Nkoransas were defeated and the town
burnt,




Later, Nana Kwame Bene litigated with ilana smeyaw Kiyakye I of .
Takyiman amd the Dormaahene’ over the bounmry on the Ahwene land.
During the litization Nana Hvame Bene who was very old became indispozcc
and died at hmas:., .Just at the time. the h:LstoL. ¢ Yaa Asantewa war
broke ou“cﬂD i

Ano‘i:.:er account is that Mana Kwame Bene took part in the Yaa :
“Asantewa campaign. It is recalled thit Yaa tkuancewa, Queen-mother of
Edweso (Bjisu) sy notified the variocus chiefs of ‘_Sn.antl of her intention.
to wage war on the "White men". - The information was that she distributes
special beads called in Twi "sg wo tuom" literary "hold .your gun" to .
the chiefs. Nana Lwame Bene réturned to ‘enclhi a,:t’mr the fight.

The story is told that one Kwasi G:ms:. a comnmoner at Jenchi seduecd

Yaa Sima, the wife of MNana Kvame Bene. The woman disclosed the adultery
and the elders of. Uenchi were informed. ' Kvrasi Gyasi was broug,h'c before
the Wenchihene and put in fetiers pending execution. .On the day a.pmom‘f..&,
for the execution of Kwasi Gyas:. news reached ienchi about the arrest of..
the Odumasihene Hana Kiabena T{yere by the fhite men‘ for hav:Lng taken -
part in the Yad! Asantewa campaign. At that time human sacr:x.f‘:u.ce had .
been abolished. . Nana: Kwame Bene for fear that the '"Ih:Lte, men ' mlght
hea.r of the eyecutlon had I’s'::as:l. Gyasi Llibera ued.

Immed:l.atelj Kwasi G-yas::. heard Of the preuence of a ’Wh:.te man' ancl
his troops ap Odumasi, hastened %o the place. e went through the bush
and sustained scratches on his bhody. Kwasi Gyasi is said to have 'tolcl
the 'Thite men', Amatakyl, pronounciation of Armitage by the nat:weu,
that Nana Kwame Béne:took par‘t in the Yaa Asantewa war. = He further said -
that Nana Bene even put him in fetters for having commented on’his - i
attitude in the war, f'ollowlng which he ‘Kwasi Gmsi had had swollen hendu.

The Nhite nan! and his troops accompam ed Krasi G-yas:t. to Wenchis:
Nana Kwame Bene and his elders were at the Ahenfie when they arrived.
Kwasi Gyasi at once pointed the enchihene to the officer.’ The enchi-
hene was 'ba.ken Anto’ custody mstantly, his sandols were removed and
| handed to lasi Gyasi by the soldiers. Lt is scia that at the time
| Kivasi- Gyas:l. came with the soldiers, he Wc.t.S dressed also in mlllte."‘j
&un:u,form with the rank of Corporal. ., The '7hite an' thrusted upon the

people of ”ench::. with no regard to traﬂ.ltlon aud. I:msh:.p systc of

uccession to the stool, Kwasi Gyasi as Tenchihencs ' The explicit
sconsent of the people was riot sought as custom implied. - He neither
swore the oath of allegiance to any elder nor cven saw. the 'Black'™
stools of Wonchi throughout the pericd-he was:acclaimed chiefas °
According to lineage, Kwasi Gyasi was the grand=child 6f- Nana. T‘Tkatla
Kwasi. '‘hile Nana Bene was in custody in Kumasi, he' commﬁtf,d s
suicide by taking an obnoxious medicine: ° His corpse was oonveyed to
Wenchi and buried.]




Three. years after Kvasi Gyasi has been declared as chief,” there was.
insurreciior against him. The DeOple of Wenchi resolved a mass exodus,
refore marched to

should Iana Kwasi Gyasi remain as chief. They the
Sampa and reported -to the resident District Coimissioner ‘the mal-
administration, extortion and mismenageuent by liena Xasi Gyasi, The
leader and spokesman for the malcontents was “;JQQ nene Hana ¥Vaw Akyerel
By the uprise and report that the town of enchi was: going to the 60(&,'
oming to the tnconstitutional enstoolment of y Iwasi Gygsi and
perhaps, in order to satisfy the rcbels and fosder uranqu111UJ, the
Distriot Comnissioner sanctioned the d59051uhzu o Hana ¥yasi Gyasil. -
A contributor to the collection of this urhdlL_ca,,Ihame Lbrefa alias
Atakora & member of the Abrefa branch of the royal family, estimated
this event to. have happened some sixty years azo. :

The causc of the revolt according to another account by Obaapanin
Yaa Darkoa was that ‘the relatives of Abrefa liradwo's line of royals felt
they were being denied the right of succession. - Two successive chiefs
from Nana Frema branch had ruled. The idea behind such rise was an
inference to the ruling made by the Asantehene Mana Bonsu Panin in the
determination of Hana Nkatia Lﬂa51 case as stated earlier.

£fter the destoolment of’ Nana Kiraai Gyasi, the helrapparent-hha31
Abrefa was in pawn at Offinso-Amowi, He had bcen pledged to one Kwaku
Dua. The District Commissioner who became aware of this fact, at the
request of the people of Wenchi, authorised the imposition of levy at the
rate of five shillings per male and .red-emed the two royals in stakes’
The other person was Kvame Gyanso, They were pawmed in the time of Mana
Kirame Bene, following a debt ingurred during-the land litigation with
the Takyimenhene Mana Konkroms,! , Dormahenc Nana Opong Yaw and Odumasihenc
Nana Kwabena Kyere respectively. The land in dispute has been
mentioned alreadye. ' : ' :

To dlf;eus, the land suit was heard by Caﬁtaln Stewart who gave
judgment in favowr of the Wenchihene, The ghiefs of Dormaa, Teghiman
and Odumasi did not agree with the deoision and petitioned to the court
of the Chief Commissioner of Ashanti, Captain Fuller, the Chief commife
sioner, upheld the Judgnent of the court below aqa demarcated the Venchi
land boundary between the disputants. -~ ° :

Back o the subject, Irasi Abrefs was enstooled. He was from the-
Abrefa side of the royal line. ls mother was idwoa hkomea also Imotm”
as Pokud, Nana. Kwasi Abrefa was the second chief from the adopted
royal groupe. In. this tlmu the Ahwene land 1litirction was resumed by the
chiefs of. Techlman, Dormaa and Odumasi, -Jeltuu Pana ¥wasi Abrefa won
the suit, He reigned for some 6 years, given is from 1904 = 1910 by
Opanin Aik&ﬂmc, and died from sleeping siclmess.
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The next occupant of the "Yefiri" stool was Kwaku Kuma younger
brother of his predecessors He had the stool name Kwaku Abrefa III.
It is said that soon after his enstoolment he begape indisposed for
three yeers from come loathsome diseases The clders seoretly one nighs
went to the District Commissioner, T.Z. Fell, stationed at Wenchi and
naively. tol him that Iana IGraku Abrefa IIT suffered from an incurable
disease from which he might zet better. They werc in their own minds
certain of leprosy aond wishes the Distwict Comi:issioner to get rid oif
him for fhem. According to informsnt Yaa Darlcoz, the District Commiz-
sioner went and saw -Nana Abrefa ITI who constnucd and abdicated.

A litile unpleasantness arose in gonnection with the election of =
successors The exw-chief Kiakw Abrefa ITI wishco
to succced and the Jueen-mother Adwoa Akomas noturally wanted one of her

sons. Proticelly 2ll other chiofs and eld.r‘rs vere against this successica.

Probably they were of the opinion that £he line of Abrefa was unheal thy

cne of his four brotioers

one, as Kwasi Aibrefa IT had suddenly ‘died and his predecessor coniracted

leprosy. 4 revolt ensued between the voyals of fbrefa family and thzt
of Frema. This brought the chief Commissioner of Ashanti, Captains
Tuller and Kortright the resident District Commissioner to the scene,.
The Administrative Officers after several meetings with the elders
evenitually obtained unanimity of the choiee of o successor, Kwaku Manu
otherwlgse Imlou Fe. He was of Frema line. Akus Fokuo was his mother.
The dissentients and the Queen mother Advoa .&i’l\.om were satisfied, and
Kwalu Manu was enstooled. S s

During the time of the instrrection the ring leader Kontonhene Yair
Besia desecrated the "blackened" ancestral stools. They were sent in
transit; 2 hut was erected in the bush at Asumengys, now a suburb of

Wenchi the site of State Farm, and kept therein, under the guard of Yaw -

Busia and Kwadwo Gyan Panin. The two guards mentioned were brothep d

the latter on the demise of the former succeeded him as Kontonhenc,
This question of the pollution of the ancestral stools brought about
dispute beticen the elders and the maleontents which lasted five years.

According to the present enchihene Nana Abrefa libore Bediatuo, the chiel-

taincy controversy was gone into by Mre Griffths the then District
Commissioncr at Sunyani. The revolters were found justified in their
action., WNana Kwalu Manu therefore pa.c:L:E‘:Lcd the elders "ascanu ne nsanu’
an approximate value of L. 13/—. Much to the annoyance, and provocatin
of the elders of this meagre amount, thereby gave occasion for sccusing
Nana Hrakw Manu of the mlsapproprlamqn of "wpercdwan Aduonum" an
amount equivalent to £,00. This amount was for the constwuction of
Wenchai=Techiman road. ,He was eonseguently denosed. 5
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Another cccount is that the investigation by Griffths confirmed tic
enstoolnent of Kvalu Manu as proper. The Juesn mother Nana Adwoa
4komse and her principal insurgents later werc imprisoned for 5 years.
Some of the accomplices namely Kwasi Badu, Kwame Brentim, Yaw Besie, Yow
Donlkor Boabai (now stool elder) and the Bwisaheno withdrew themselves
and apologised through Nana Bonsu Boame, & consul of the Asantehene at
Yenchis. The stools were later brought out from the hiding, DNans Kralu

Manu reconciled with the people and made them "drink mecdicine® to shaow

their wnflinched loyalty to the stool and his person.!d

Nana Livaku lanu was said tohave had the nccessary influence with
his people and was respected by them. His genersl demeanour and
dignity of manners rendered him eminently suited to the office.

On the death of Iana KWak&‘Manu,zo Xwasi Uoakye, son of Yaa Darkos
(alive) was elected as the popular choice, ' i;zs the nephew of Mana
Manues The only dissentient to the election was the Queen-mother Nana
Adwoa Akomaas  She desired either Kwame Ira or Iweme Gyenso for the
succession to the stool. The elders refused cither candidates for they
with the Queen-mother were the prinecipal pertics who exposed, and stole
the "blaolened" ancestral 'stools and laid then open to disgrace and

riducule and above all dcbased the mame of Jenchi, Afterwards the AQueen
mother yielded to the election of Kwasi Boakye of Frema line, the choice

of the populace. He was a rinop.
The elders in concert made the Irontihene, Yaw Taku, regent until Kwasi
Boakye was of agee. : ’

On the death of: Yaw Taku, Sannahene Kvaku Adae took over the
regencys H: us remcved at the instigation of the resident District
Comm&g?ioner, Tor he had rashes on the bodye. ' As a result of this Kvame
Abrefa, scn of Jueen-mother Adwoa fkomaa Gyebirisaw appointed the regent.
During the regency of Kwame Abrefa‘iﬁ is said that hec made many regalias.

Nena Kwasi Boakye, the young chief olect was enrolled as a pupil in
the Anglicon School in Rumasi. His tuition tras born by the Wenchi
people. 'aen he had read up to Standard 5, now Middle Form 2, the
Twafohene Iivabena Korkor, alias Kyereme and the Gyasechenc Kofi Piavee
petitioned the Chief Commissioner: of Ashanti for the relecase of the
pupil chief designate to be enstooled,
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Kwasi Boakye had growm enough at the time to exercise the power and
perform the duties of his position. The Chief Commissioner of Ashanti
consented and Kvasi Boakye stopped the scﬂ*xoc:ln._;b end was customarily
enstooled.

Before Krame Abrefa left the rcgency, he handed the many regalia
mzde by him to the Stool family as gift. Agein he had acecumilated an
amount of £E],000 stool revenue.

Seven years after the enstoolment of Nana iiresi Boakye, he greatly
disappointed the hopes of his people. This might have been due to a
great defeet in his training when & minor, over-indulgence taking the
place of strict discipline. He was accused of the misappropristion of
the £G1,000 stool revenue and lef't only eight shillings in the coffers.
lioreover, he zave an ancestral "Ahwene kokoo" (red bead) to his
coneubine in Kumasi. The deposition of ilana ﬁH;SZ Boakye was all that
the elders demanded and thereforc rebelied agein -ﬂt him, At last he was
deutooled accordingly and the year was in 1936.2

Now, & nember of Abrefa branch was enstooled, He was the former
regent Iwame Abrefa, son of Adwoa Gyebus. It is recounted that many
schools were established in the towm during his regency., When he
became the Wenchihene, negotiated with the Reverend Taylor of the
Methodist Church gbout the building of = Hission Lhospitzl. He contributed
an amount of £G1,000 for the foundations

4 sudden turn arcse when Mana Kfame Abrefc ves thirteen years on
the stool. The elders and the people lost coniiience in thc chief Znd
the spirit of rebellion began to spread throughout the tovm, He wa
censured as a drunkard, abusive to his subjects and illiterate before
the Ashantiman Council in FKumasi. The decision of the Council was in
favour of Nana Kwame Abrefa but could not from the imnocency with which
he had bcen regarded remain on the stool than abdicated and continued %o
live as a private individual. At this time an amount of £G§,616 was in
the Government chest at the credit of the Venchi Stool. Nana Kwame
Abrefa refused a compensation of £G160 from the ‘Tenchi people as ordered
by the Asantehene Nana Sir Otumfuo Osei Agyeman Prempe IT, The latter
part of his reign was in the era of politics in Ghana and therc was at
Wenchi a sizesble opinion favouring the National Liberation Movement
(,L.M.), The general coneeption according to Opanin Kvame Atakora, an
inf'ormant, was that the whole issue was during the politieal transition
in Ghana and probably moved by Dr. Iofi Abrefa Busia, a native and the
then Chairmen of the defunct regionally based Opposition Party, the
TUnited Paruy (UsP,), an offwshoot of the N.l.ile No doubt the cousin
of Dr, Ke¢4, Busia next ascended the s’sool.22
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Kyame Kusi, son of Yaa Pokua, was enstoolec with the name of Lusi
Apeu. e was of the Frema line. The period off his reign coincided
with the polltlca?_00p051tlon group wish ‘tribal Tfactions spilled over
thu countr", ¢spéciglly in. nubantl. Hana ¥usi Apea tended to be
involved dn politics and was a member of the proscribed Opposition Par’y,
the United Party. With such politieal affiliations enchanced his
capacity and perhaps receiving encourszement from his cousin, Dr. L.A.
Busia, maltrea bed without cause his polltjcal obponents that a Gommission
of Enquiry wos set by the Government of ths dey, Tormed by the
Convention Peoples’ Party (CePsP.). The sole Commissioner was Sir
Jackson. - Nena Kusi Apea had earlier been charged with misappropriation
of stool fUnds. Following the findings of the Commission, Nana Rusi
Apea was deposed.e3 = e

Gone is the unifying glue iof chiefship opovcsuion, while herifage
of co~operation and socialist unity is the general phenomenon. In the
samg year that MNana Iusi Apea was destooled Krane Abrefa the ex-chief
was elected but declined the offer on the grounds of old age. He
thérefore appointed his nephew Anthony Kofi Adomaku, son of Abena Duefia
and was enstooled with the name Abrcfa limore Bodlhtuo IV. He is of the
Abrefa famllj.

Nana Abre¢a Mmore Bediatuo IV concludcd the protracte& land dispute
with Taky;man, Dorma and Odumesi, later tho land in question was

demarcated.,

On October 16, 196k, the Wenchihenc who is'a staunch Roman Catholic
was granted audience by'the Holy Father Pope Paul to the Holy Seas

The !Yefiri! stool and the Janchihcne have the following
ap,ellatlon. = o o

"Abrefa Mmore Bediatuo. Ko agyama mu;
= dom trene. Brong kyempim“(%ﬁ&ng rkyvekyem apim)
fe ' dueduskwahenes g
Venchi atete kromen; da mere pintinni, pantampa24
abo bon ma pranyini anya baabi adhe =
-‘Kotoko si aguo e na. oboo damu"' :

(Abrefa Mmore Bedlatuo. Vamlshcr B to gywma Lot
tree} " distributer of. Brong peoplcs * 2
_Jencbl of old; -where 'pintinpiy pantompa' =
madelanurrow and.. pranlnlf had ¢ 31ace fo e a
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5 Jama Ta'br:l.lm Iurye Ama.niampon and I\ang ‘Lrsg.scba' Odensuo
2. *Ie.na .esnye Amanlampon and I 'Tana Atoa
3« MHana Ohene Doon 4-a_md. Ii'a.na Atqe; =
s -Te.z;a ahane Antb and Iil'é.n..a. Adomea
5. NanaHla®ia Twasi and Vane Adomsa
. 6. { E‘Iﬂ.na‘Alﬂ-'-rora. Fi (Regent) and Vana Adomasa
7s Naz}s_;_;_oigég G-ya,na -and Nana Adomso.
8. Nana Afua Frema (Regent)
9a A.Drma Iss.adwo end Nana Ama Suaa
10, Nana Kiame Bene and Mana Adwoa Pokua 3
11, Nana Kvasi G’yasi miid"'r-rana'.rxdwo-a Kor‘aa.a.
12..__ ‘_Hran; Iur;sn. Ab};'efa and Nana Adwoa, Kpmaa. e TR .
*13:‘:‘_:' "'*L*Taha—:luralm Abref‘a. III and l\:anu Ad zoa. Komua , - = 3
144 Zq\ia.ne -ma.ku L'Ja.nu and Iac.na Adwoa uomaa
15, -Hang Yaw Taku (Regent) and Nana Adrda Lomaa e
- 465 ' Nana Kralu Ad.ae (Regent) und Tana Acl\roa Aoma.a !
17+ _ Nana I7ame. _A‘nrefa (Regemt) a.r;d, Yana Adwros, lomaa.
18,  Tana Twasi Boa.kye and I«!e:r;;.nom f.dwqg __--_noma:-,,. Ldu. I‘u.a
19 HNana Krane Abrefa and flana Adu Fua
#20, Nong Fusi Apca and Nanenom Adu Fua (deooscd); Afua Frema

2.

DYWASTY OF WENCHI CHIEFS A.L'D
QUEE‘T MOTH-RS = -

Nanz Abrefa Mmore Bediatuo IV and lfana Adu Tuz.
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14 Information given by Nenas 4brefs lmore Bediatuo IV.

= 2¢ Information by Obaapanin Yaz Darko is that Nana

; Tabirakuo Anye Amaniampon was thc aboriginal leadeér
~angd chief who accompanied the peoplc from the hole.
“ Sho” contradicted that of lana Abrefa Mmore Bediatuo IV.

%, 'Dufua' is a king of 2n ancient stool which preceded
the now well known "Asese-=dwa'.

Lia ’Mpimso' literary meaning 'greedy? was the nlck-nane
< of Nana Osel Tutu of Au$c514
55 1 the time of Asantehene Wana, “U:ku Dua I (18 8—1867)

6y Information given by Obaspanin ¥e , Darkoa in contrbdlct1on
to foot note 8. -

3 Te The ceremonial sword is now deposited in the Museum of
the Institute of Af'rican chI:LeJ." Sword '\IO.I 65}.208

-

8. Information given by the present chhlhcne‘\

s,

o

9. Information from Opanin Iivame Abrefa alias Atakora of

Abrefa family of royals. - = S e
10 & 11« An account by Obaapanin-faa Darlcoa s == o

12. An account from the present ° fencb;hene.
< 13, Information from Obaapenin Yaa Jarkoa and Alhagl Sbldu-

1l.s  Locording to Hani/Nsawkew Tradition (TAS. act. no, BA2)
the name of the Nsawkaithene waj Lofi Knrkor alias Dﬂgyamo.

15 & 16. Information from Opanin Kvame itakora allau Abrefa.

17, 18 & 19.  An account by Obaspanin. Yaa Darkod,
20, lir. Boye Busia gives the dafic as on: September 3,.1923.: S
2% e Information given by‘the present archlhene and Donkor,u.-

22 & 23, Information fron’ the ﬁreoent enchlhene.

L. Other names for the animal: 'Waﬁxyﬁe’ ‘Tt has from thé

o time of the aboriginal scttlers Dbcn a taboo for the
: people to kill it = : e
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Information given by Nena -Abrefa lmore Bediatuo IV.

Information by Obaapanin Yaz Darko is that Nana
Tabirakuo Anye Amaniampon was the aboriginal leadér
angd. chief who accomnanlcd the people from the hole,

' She contradicted that of I'ana Abrefa Mmore Bediatuo IV.

"Dufua' is a king of an ancicnt siool which prece&ed %
the now well known "Asese=dia'.

‘1@imso' literary meaning 'greedy? vas ‘the nlck-name
of Mana Osei Tutu of Kumasiu R

In the time of Asantehene Nana 4‘m3w11(1&£48@)

r

Information given by Obaspanin ¥ & Darkoa in contrgdlctlon
to foot note 8.

Tho ceremonial sword is now deposited in the Museum of
the Institute of Africen Studies."Sword No«dg Ghe208" °

Information given by the present tenchihenes - —
Information from Opanin Iveme Abrefa alias Atekora of
Abrefa family of royals.. - - s o
An account by Obaapanln Yaa Darkoa.

An account from the present ° ’Gncblhene.

a

Information from Obaapenin Yaz Darkoa and Alhaal Seldu.

Lccording to Hani/Nsawkaw Traéiiicn'(IAS. 8CCe MO BA/2}
the name of the Nsawkawhene was Kofi Knrkor alias Dagjamo.

Information from Opanin Kiame "twkora allas Abrefa.
An account by Obaspanin. Yaa Darked, = = (g
lir. Boye Busia gives the dab ¢ as om September Sy 1925
Information given by the prescnt ‘enchihene and Donkor,u.P.
Information from the presert enchlhene.

Other names for the animal Wankyeg', It has Prom the
time of the aboriginal settlers DuCn _a taboo for thu
people to kill it,:- ' :

A





